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Corporate Profile

SEE

CORPORATE PROFILE

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) (Hong Kong
Stock Exchange stock code: 143 and Singapore Exchange
stock code: G11), together with its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”), is principally engaged in the trading of
telecommunications products, provision of repair services, and
investment in financial assets.

On 14 December 2015, FEBIZ S B AR A 7 (CITIC Guoan
Group*) became one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company. CITIC Guoan Group is a large and wide-ranging
enterprise group in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Headquartered in Beijing, CITIC Guoan Group's scope of
business comprises, inter alia, finance, telecommunications,
tourism, resources development, wine, real estate, culture and
healthcare.

The Company intends to leverage on its presence in Hong
Kong and Singapore to expand current businesses horizontally
and vertically, as well as to venture into new industries and
identify new investment opportunities to improve its business
prospects for the long-term commercial interest of the
Company and its shareholders. Financial plans will periodically
be revisited to strengthen the Company’s financial position
whilst taking capital market conditions into consideration in
formulating strategies.

*  For identification purpose only
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Corporate Information

SEEH

Executive Directors: Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian BMITESE: ‘EiRsKELED
Mr. SO Haw Herman @ BB
Non-executive Directors:  Mr. DU Jun @ (Chairman) FEHITEE: HERED (XF)
Mr. LI Xiang Yu @ FRHEES
Mr. CUI Ming Hong © ERREE®
Mr. YANG Li Ming @ B EREED
Independent Mr. WONG Chun Man © BN IEBTT FEIEES
Non-executive Directors: Mr. TSE Yung Hoi @ g% FBBRES
Mr. NG Man Kung © RNHSEED
Company Secretary: Mr. WONG Man Yiu NEME: BXRBEE
Registered Office: P.O. Box 309 I =R - P.O. Box 309
Ugland House Ugland House
George Town George Town
Grand Cayman Grand Cayman
KY1-1104 KY1-1104
Cayman lIslands Cayman Islands
Head Office and Room 2903 mmERk BB
Principal Place of 29" Floor * Al
Business: Prosperity Place B B
6 Shing Yip Street PX ZE 1H65%
Kwun Tong BhE B %
Kowloon 29012
Hong Kong 2903%
Telephone: 2425 8888 BHE: 2425 8888
Facsimile: 3181 9980 EE: 3181 9980
E-mail: info@iglobaltech.com BE info@iglobaltech.com
Website: www.iglobaltech.com Ak - www.iglobaltech.com
Notes: Mz :
m Appointed as Non-executive Director on 3 February 2016 and M R -E—NE-A-RESIAIEHTE
re-designated as Executive Director on 11 March 2016. ERR_E—ANE-R+—BERATAY
TESE-
@ Appointed on 3 February 2016. @ R-oB-—NE-_A=-BHEZEF-
@ Appointed on 11 March 2016. 6 RoB—NE-A+-—BEEE-
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SERH

Principal Share Registrar
and Transfer Office:

Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and Transfer
Office:

Singapore Share Transfer
Agent:

Listing Information:

Auditors:

Principal Bankers:

Investor Relation Adviser:

lobal Tech (Holdings) Limited

Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman)
Limited

4™ Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Boardroom Corporate & Advisory
Services Pte. Ltd.

50 Raffles Place

#32-01 Singapore Land Tower

Singapore 048623

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited: 143
Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited: G11

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountant

China Citic Bank International Limited

Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

t6.communication limited
Room 1103

Lap Fai Building

6-8 Pottinger Street

Central

Hong Kong

Telephone : 2511 8388
Facsimile 2511 8238

Email enquiry@t6pr.com

Annual Report 2016

TERMD
el

BiE

BiDBFE
L&

R A0 ¥ 03
®E
RER

R A0 4 55% -

T2 2R -

e
R1T

BREEBIER
A -

Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman)
Limited

4™ Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

PERMEHERA A
BB
SRRNEFRI183H

B 0221

Boardroom Corporate &
Advisory Services Pte. Ltd.

50 Raffles Place

#32-01 Singapore Land Tower

Singapore 048623

ERBMERBMARRQR:
143

MBS PAER
UNCIRNCEN

HEEMEHMERAF
HEERTED

FEHRT (B BRA T
SRRTERAA
ERRT(BE)BRAA
B LBESRITARAT

EEANBEAEREAN A
BB

IR

Wi ) “E £76-85%
TEXE

1103=

TE5E 2511 8388
HH 25118238
B H : enquiry@t6pr.com



Chairman's Statement

The Group's gross profit was improved during the past
financial year against a set of formidable challenges, both on a
global economic level and in the context of our local operating
environment. While the Group continues to tackle the
difficulties associated with its telecommunications operations,
we will review our business strategies from time to time in
order to keep pace with the changing market landscape and
trends.

Subsequent to the acquisition of an equity interest in the
Company by Road Shine Developments Limited, the Group is
now indirectly owned by F1EE % & E AR A F] (CITIC Guoan
Group), a conglomerate in the PRC market. With the support
of the holding company and its strong ties with the PRC, the
Group is well positioned to pursue a multitude of investment
opportunities with the aim of broadening and strengthening its
income base.

The world economy is poised for a mild recovery in 2017,
but prospects will differ between territories. In advanced
economies, the outlook is subdued as they are subject to
uncertainty and downside risks fuelled by further political
discontent and anti-globalisation platforms. On the other
hand, emerging Asia in general is expected to see more solid
growth in the coming year.

Looking to the year ahead, Asia is forecast to remain the
most dynamic region of the global economy, continuing to
contribute 60% of world growth. In particular, economic
performance is set to improve further in Southeast Asia.
Positioning our investments in markets and sectors where
we have competitive advantages, we will prudently seek to
further develop the Group’s business portfolio in Asia and
other markets that offer viable investment opportunities. We
will also look for other collaborative opportunities that provide
synergies with the Group or our parent company.

Moving forward against a backdrop of global uncertainty and
financial volatility, the Group works hard to ensure that risk
management and corporate goals are integrated, and that
risk control practices are embedded within all operations.
Management accountability is also in place to ensure that
further investment or business development decisions remain
within the Group’s risk tolerance level.
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Chairman's Statement

ERHRE

As we are braced for ongoing challenges, we maintain a
positive view to the future. Management will review and strive
to enhance overall operational efficiency, adjust the Group's
business portfolio and strategies to match our strengths with
market demand, and capture the right growth opportunities
while guarding the Group against economic headwinds.

The Group will continue to build on its strengths in the
coming year. The Board wishes to express its gratitude to the
shareholders, management, staff team and business partners
for making this progress possible. We are confident that the
new management will guide the Group through the challenges
ahead and deliver long-term value to shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the year ended 30 September 2016, the Group
recorded a 19.3% year on year increase in revenue to
approximately HK$103.4 million (2015: HK$86.7 million).
The loss from operations was approximately HK$25.3 million
(2015: HK$23.4 million).

A net loss of approximately HK$25.3 million (2015: loss
of HK$23.3 million) was incurred during the year, mainly
attributable to the increase in administrative expenses.

As a result of higher demand for smartphone upgrading/
maintenance services, revenue generated from the provision
of repair services rose 17.1% year on year to approximately
HK$94.7 million (2015: HK$80.9 million). This services
provision segment continued to sustain global economy and
market fluctuation to provide a steady stream of recurrent
income to the Group while complementing the trading
business.

MARKET OVERVIEW

Hong Kong's actual gross domestic product (GDP) expanded
1.4% in the first three quarters of 2016, according to figures
released by the Hong Kong SAR Government in its last
quarterly economic report. A likely further modest growth
is anticipated for the final quarter of this year. Domestic
demand have remained resilient. The latest business tendency
survey indicated that overall business sentiment among large
enterprises have improved, though small and medium-sized
businesses remained cautious. For the first ten months of
2016, the value of total exports of goods dropped by 2.5%
year on year. In particular, the category of telecommunications
and other audio equipment recorded a 3.5% decline.

Hong Kong is a leading digital economy, consistently
achieving top rankings in digital readiness and Internet access
capabilities. The city’s telecommunications infrastructure is one
of the most advanced in the world, providing a wide range of
services at affordable pricings.

The local public mobile services market, which the Group
operates in, remains vibrant. As at May 2016, there were four
mobile network operators. As recorded by the Hong Kong
Communications Authority, the number of mobile service
subscribers decreased slightly to 16.72 million in March 2016,
still representing one of the highest penetration rates in the
world at about 228%. Among these subscribers, 14.69 million
were third-generation (3G) or fourth-generation (4G) service
customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEF WS

As at March 2016, monthly mobile data usage recorded a
surge to 20,557 Terabytes (i.e. 20,557,188 Gigabytes), or an
average of 1,358 Mbytes per 2.5G/3G/4G mobile user. This
represents a growth of 1.18 times in mobile data usage year

on year.

In addition to 3G services, all four mobile network operators
have deployed 4G services utilising Long Term Evolution
(LTE) technology. With a wide range of high-speed mobile
data services available in Hong Kong, subscribers are able to
download and upload large files via the Internet and enjoy
faster and better quality video streaming and web browsing on

mobile devices.

As stated in the Global Information Technology Report 2016
published by the World Economic Forum, Hong Kong jumped
two spots to rank 12th globally in terms of the Networked
Readiness Index. Taking a closer look at the sub-indices, the
city was among the top markets with a 100% rate of mobile
network coverage, ranked 18th in terms of the development
of laws relating to the use of information and communication
technology (ICT), and 22nd in the availability of latest
technologies. In respect of the availability of venture capital

funding to tech startups, Hong Kong ranked 9th.

Hong Kong is also a highly competitive market, with its
intensity of competition coming 2nd after only Japan. In
the telecommunications sector, the level of competition for
Internet and mobile telephone services was also one of the
highest worldwide. This may have led to the city registering
the lowest average per-minute cost of mobile cellular calls in

the world.

According to the 2016 edition of the Hong Kong as an
Information Society report prepared by the Census and
Statistics Department, there were some 16,500 business
establishments engaged in the ICT sector in 2014, with
a workforce of 129,500 or 3.5% of Hong Kong's total
employment. The value added of the ICT sector totalled
HK$133.7 billion, representing 6.1% of GDP at basic prices,
down 4.0% from a year earlier. Industries engaged in the
distribution of ICT products accounted for 54.2% of total
value added, whereas the provision of services made up

45.4%.

The report also pointed to an increasing rate of smartphone
usage in Hong Kong. The proportion of persons aged 10 and
over owning smartphones rose from 54.0% in 2012 to 83.0%

in 2015.
i
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Management Discussion and Analysis

While the city is regarded as an advanced market for mobility,
it is falling behind Singapore, Japan, and Taiwan in policy
support for innovation, which may impede its further ICT
development.

A think tank, the Information Technology and Innovation
Foundation, found Hong Kong ranking only 29th in a global
study of how domestic policies impact global innovation.
The Hong Kong SAR Government is being pressed to put in
more efforts to promote the ICT industries and to support
local tech entrepreneurs. Technological development requires
an ecosystem conducive to innovation, and this calls for a
reasonable balance between regulation and incentive.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND WORKING
CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group's total non-current assets amounted to
approximately HK$9.3 million (2015: HK$8.9 million) at 30
September 2016.

The Group maintained its conservative low-inventory policy
during the year. As a result, inventories remained at a relatively
low level of approximately HK$1.4 million (2015: HK$2.3
million) at 30 September 2016.

As at 30 September 2016, the Group had net trade receivables
of approximately HK$1.1 million (2015: HK$1.3 million). The
Group's bank borrowings stood at HK$4.5 million (2015:
HK$4.5 million), while its gearing ratio, expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings over total assets, was 69.5%
(2015: 11.3%), a substantial increase due to the drawdown
of an interest free and unsecured loan of HK$50 million from
Road Shine Developments Limited, the major shareholder
of the Company. A fixed deposit of approximately HK$5.0
million (2015: HK$5.0 million) was pledged to secure banking
facilities. The current ratio was approximately 0.86 (2015:
1.84) while the liquid ratio stood at approximately 0.84 (2015:
1.71).

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 30 September
2016 was HK$52.9 million (2015: HK$14.3 million), a
substantial increase due to the drawdown of an interest
free and unsecured loan of HK$50 million from Road Shine
Developments Limited, the major shareholder of the Company.

The objective of the Group’s cash management policy is to
optimise liquidity to gain a better return for shareholders in a
risk-averse manner. At 30 September 2016, the value of the
Group’s investment in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$0.2 million
(2015: HK$0.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEF WS

Amid the prevailing financial volatility, the Group is committed
to maintaining a conservative cash management policy and to
increase operating efficient.

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIC OUTLOOK

The global economy has stabilised from its acute start of the
year, but economists have warned of potential risks associated
with the Brexit event along with upcoming elections of other
major EU countries, the new administration of the United
States (US) taking office, and continuing geopolitical tensions.

Global growth for 2016 was projected by the International
Monetary Fund (IMF) to slow to 3.1%. This 2016 forecast,
revised down by 0.1 percentage point relative to April figures,
reflects a more subdued outlook for advanced economies
following the Brexit vote and weaker-than-expected growth in
the US.

The IMF's outlook was shaped by a complex confluence of
ongoing realignments, long-term trends and new shocks. A
more recent unforeseen development was the US President-
elect’s pledge to abandon the planned Trans-Pacific Partnership
(TPP) deal, and a likely more aggressive trade policy in future,
which will add to global economic uncertainty going forward.

The 2016 growth of advanced economies has been marked
down to 1.6%. Growth in emerging markets is expected to
strengthen slightly to 4.2% after four consecutive years of
decline. However, their outlook is uneven and generally weaker
than in the past. Other factors weighing on global activity
include China’s ongoing economic adjustments.

Looking ahead, global economic recovery is forecast to pick up
from 2017 onwards, driven mostly by the developing world.
For Hong Kong, the local economy found solid footing in the
third quarter of 2016, but the IMF has lowered the city's 2017
growth forecast to 2.4%. The organisation added that Hong
Kong had benefited from ‘one country, two systems’ and its
GDP forecast cut stemmed primarily from the sluggish global
economy. It remarked that Hong Kong remained in a very
strong position.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The International Telecommunication Union (ITU), in its annual
Measuring the Information Society Report, stated its view that
there are still investment opportunities for the ICT sector to
connect the unconnected world. At the end of 2016, there are
as many mobile subscribers as the total world population, but
in order to get the true picture, the data needs to be cross-
referenced with the many multiple subscriptions or device
ownerships.

Research firm Gartner, Inc. forecast a 1.6% drop in total
mobile phone shipments for 2016. Combined shipments for
devices (PCs, tablets, ultramobiles and mobile phones) were
forecast to decrease 3%, which would mark the second
consecutive year of decline. Growth is expected to remain flat
during the next five years. The smartphone segment is also
maturing and reaching global saturation.

The Group will continue to navigate its existing operations
through the challenging and shifting market landscape.
However, as part of our long-term efforts to enhance
shareholder value and in view of the competitive operating
environment of the local telecommunications arena, the Group
will seek to broaden its business horizons by pursuing viable
investment opportunities. The Board believes that it is in the
shareholders’ interest to widen the Group’s business scope
in the long term, across different sectors and geographical
locations, as well as across products and service offerings that
may create synergy with the company investments.

The Group will continue to review its financial position and
existing operations while formulating its long-term business
plans and strategies. It will adhere to stringent principles in
assessing and managing risks during the course of any such
business developments.

With new management on board, the Group is well positioned
to achieve its long-term goal of delivering shareholder
value. The new management is currently reviewing several
propositions and will continue to review the operating
efficiency of the Group to consolidate its offices in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELIRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES THEERESR

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate & MKEREGEEGRAIKLRERZ ARIE
governance principles and practices has always been one of  E—EAARGHKELFRANZ— - AREIE
the top priorities of the Company. The board of directors of H& ([EF2|)RARTNLEE AL
the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate  BAAREBRAKD LKFERE BF LiE
governance is one of the areas that leads to the success of BZMFHEZAZZz— BEFSRIRE
the Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders, B EZERAILE R 2 HE LB KE-
customers and employees, and the Board is devoted to

ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness of

such principles and practices.

Throughout the year ended 30 September 2016, the Company ~ REZE T—/\Ehﬂ + B 1EFE HfE
has complied with the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) set A+ AR BTEREBMERHFAR
out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix ﬂﬁ%%iﬁ%ﬁﬁw ( [ ER A1) Ky +m
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The — Fr&Elz®%EEASTRINZ SFRIES (578
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), fxx]) RT3 A EHZ;ET:H)E%’E$IE
except for certain deviations specified with considered reasons  FRAN (T X B2 ERmEk BB IR EAL A

explained below. BARESENER) -
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS Exg
Composition and Responsibilities HRERBE

The Board currently comprises nine directors (“Directors”), BZEEHABHNEBES ([EF])4Ek H
of which two are Executive Directors, four are Non-executive FEEMBRITES NEIFRTEER

Directors and three are Independent Non-executive Directors. —RBEUERITES

The Board members of the Company during the year are: FARRAIEEEKER:

Executive Directors: HITESE:

Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian'" e el

Mr. SO Haw Herman®@ BRETED

Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy® ML LD

Mr. SUNG Yee Keung, Ricky® RERTES

Non-executive Directors: FHITESE:

Mr. DU Jun® (Chairman) HEELW (FE)

Mr. LI Xiang Yu® FRBEEY

Mr. CUI Ming Hong“ ERETEY

Mr. YANG Li Ming® BIREED

Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren® BEREES

Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHITESE:

Mr. WONG Chun Man® FEXFEY

Mr. TSE Yung Hoi® HEBEE

Mr. NG Man Kung® RXHEE®

Mr. Andrew David ROSS® Andrew David ROSSZE£®

Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT® Geoffrey William FAWCETTS 40

Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON® Charles Robert LAWSONZ: 46
]
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition and Responsibilities (continued)

Notes:

m Appointed as Non-executive Director on 3 February 2016 and
re-designated as Executive Director on 11 March 2016.

@ Appointed on 3 February 2016.

@ Resigned on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company.

@ Appointed on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company.

The biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section headed Human Capital on pages 27 to 30.

While the Board is primarily overseeing and managing the
Company’s affairs, the Chairman of the Board provides
leadership to the Board in carrying out its duties. The
Executive Directors constituting the senior management of
the Company are delegated with responsibilities in the day-
to-day management of the Company and make operational
and business decisions within the control of and delegation
framework of the Company. The Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors) contribute
valuable views and proposals for the Board'’s deliberation and
decisions.

The positions of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") of the Company were both carried on by Mr.
SY Ethan, Timothy during the period from 1 October 2015
to the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 11
March 2016. Although Code Provision A.2.1 provides that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual,
the Board considers that this structure does not undermine
the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management. The Board members have considerable
experience and qualities which they bring to the Company and
the Board believes that it is able to ensure that the balance
of power between the Board and the management is not
impaired. The Board believes that having the same person
performing the roles of both Chairman and CEO does provide
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and that,
operating in this manner allows for more effective and efficient
overall strategic planning of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERER[WE
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BEE®(H)
Composition and Responsibilities (continued) RERBE (&)

Immediately after the annual general meeting of the Company  BER —_ZT— X NF=ZA+—BE£1724ARQ
held on 11 March 2016, Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy resigned AREBFREER MAELTEHTIES
from the positions of Chairman of the Board and CEO while — @ EERITHRAH MtELEEZTA
Mr. DU Jun was appointed as Chairman of the Board and EEE€TXFERIEHNTEF - R _T—F
Non-executive Director. No CEO has been appointed after =A+—B&RT7BEAFASRITES
the annual general meeting held on 11 March 2016 and the  E1TEAEE  MAR R ZTHEREE ML
executive functions of the Company have been shared jointly TEENEHREBEAERADE-BEFE
by the Executive Directors and the senior management. The RAARRANR _ZT—RNF=A+—HLE1T
Board considers that the Company has been compliant with ZARBRRBF KGR —BEETTAE
Code Provision A.2.1 after the annual general meeting of the A2 M-

Company held on 11 March 2016.

Board Meetings ESg83

The Board members meet regularly, normally four times FxeErHfTex (BT ATFN
each year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss X #FF—K) IRE LFTmAQAZ
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial ~ ZEKELEELFEHE 2RI it
performance of the Company. Other Board meetings will be EEE@HNFTER ST RIT -RZEES
held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active  @FEMYIEAXDEETHEHNEBEME
participation, either in person or through other electronic ~ FEMARBHBELHEH - REHE T —RF
means of communication, of a majority of Directors. During N AZ=+HILFER KETBXTH
the year ended 30 September 2016, six reqular Board meetings =EEE2€:% SE=2HFLHEEIIOT
were held and the attendance records of individual Directors

are set out below:

Number of
meetings
attended/held
EHE 81T
BB
Executive Directors: HITEH:
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian®™ EHIRF LD 2/2
Mr. SO Haw Herman® BRI E® 2/2
Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy® WBERRE S £ 3/4
Mr. SUNG Yee Keung, Ricky® KEREEO 1/4
Non-executive Directors: FHITESE:
Mr. DU Jun® (Chairman) MELEED (FE) 212
Mr. LI Xiang Yu® BrEBEEE® 12
Mr. CUI Ming Hong® ERRR @ 12
Mr. YANG Li Ming®? B AR AE® 12
Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren® SEHmLEES 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYIIFHITEF:
Mr. WONG Chun Man® TEXLEA® 202
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi® MBS @ 2/2
Mr. NG Man Kung® STt 4@ 2/2
Mr. Andrew David ROSS® Andrew David ROSSH 4£E® 4/4
Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT® Geoffrey William FAWCETTSE & ©® 4/4
Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON® Charles Robert LAWSONSE A ® 4/4
i
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

Notes:

m Appointed as Non-executive Director on 3 February 2016 and
re-designated as Executive Director on 11 March 2016.

@ Appointed on 3 February 2016.

@ Resigned on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company.

@ Appointed on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company.

Appropriate notices were given to all Directors in advance
for attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting
agendas and other relevant information are normally provided
to the Directors in advance of Board meetings. All Directors
are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda for
Board meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensure that Board
procedures, and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are
followed.

Draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records respectively. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal

All Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have entered into service contracts with
the Company for a specific term of two years.

Code Provision A.4.2 provides that every director should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. According to Article 116 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, all Directors (except CEO) shall retire by
rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company at
least once every three years. In the opinion of the Board,
stability and continuation are key factors to the successful
implementation of business plans. The Board believes that it is
beneficial to the Group that there is continuity in the role of
the CEO and, therefore, the Board is of the view that the CEO
should be exempt from this arrangement. In any event, the
Company has been in compliance with Code Provision A.4.2
consequent upon the resignation of Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy
as CEO immediately after the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 11 March 2016 and since then no CEO has
been appointed.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELIRS

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Appointments, Re-election and Removal (continued)

The Board is collectively responsible for appointing new
Directors either to fill causal vacancies or as additional Board
members and removing any Director. Candidates to be
appointed are those experienced, high caliber individuals with
sufficient skills and knowledge required for the positions. All
candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth in
rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director should
also meet the independence criteria set out in rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It maintains a board diversity
policy setting out the approach to diversity of members
of the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business. All Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee in March
2012, with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code Provisions, which have been reviewed from time to time
by the Board to keep them in line with the most up-to-date
requirements. The Committee currently comprises one Non-
executive Director, namely Mr. DU Jun and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. WONG Chun Man,
TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man Kung, and is chaired by Mr. DU
Jun. The most up-to-date written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the Company’'s
website.

i
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board regularly and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Its
duties include making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. In carrying out the responsibility of
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members
of the Board, the Committee will give adequate consideration
to the board diversity policy. The Committee is also responsible
for assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties.

During the year ended 30 September 2016, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board. It also assessed and confirmed the independence of the
three Independent Non-executive Directors, and recommended
to the Board the nomination of Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian, Mr.
SO Haw Herman, Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT and Mr.
Charles Robert LAWSON for re-appointment as Directors by
the shareholders at the 2016 annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year,
and the attendance record of individual Committee members
are set out below:

EEELIRE
BEEE(8)
BEES® (&)
RAEEERETHRTES SRR

AB AR - W AEAARRRNDE
REMBRESEETSELMNEDREES -
HEEPREMEEBRAATERES £
ITREHEZTEEUALRESHTAEAE
EeRHIEZ - RBETHEABEER AR
AEEEKEBZRER ZESBRNE
BEEeXEZTLILERR-ZEESNER
B IERITEENE LML -IRERESR
AR TERNBITERSE

REBEE-_ZE—A"FNA=THLFE &
HELEECHESSWERE  ASRAERKE
THRE MY =R B IERITESIEL T
EREREBYE TREESHEIRS
= 4R w58 A &R0 ST A Geoffrey William
FAWCETT4 4 K Charles Robert LAWSON
HERARG ZE—ANFRFBAFANESH
[RRERETES-

REZBENFRAERIT - REH L8

SERBZHEREFEIT

Number of
meetings
attended/held
BHE BT
BERY
Mr. DU Jun® (Chairman) HELEED (EE) 0/0
Mr. WONG Chun Man® FEXSEAE 0/0
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi® EipEsh e 0/0
Mr. NG Man Kung™ RCHE A 0/0
Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy® MEERBE L £ 1/1
Mr. Andrew David ROSS® Andrew David ROSS%t 4@ 1/1
Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON® Charles Robert LAWSONSE £ 171
Notes: Kt et
™ Appointed on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual O ARRABREEAFRGEREN_Z—RF
general meeting of the Company. =A+—HEZE-
@ Resigned on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual @ ARFRREFRASHERBR T F
general meeting of the Company. Sl o el |
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELIRS

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Confirmation of Independence

The independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing
Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has made an annual written confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
guidelines for assessing independence set out in rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties which have been formalised into
the terms of reference of the Board, a summary of which are
as follows:

— To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
any changes it considers necessary to ensure their
effectiveness;

— To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

-  To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

—  To review the Company’s compliance with the Code
Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the year, the Board reviewed and approved the

Corporate Governance Report contained in the Company’s
2015 Annual Report.

i
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. Specific
enquiry has been made to all Directors who have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year under review.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Directors are continually
updated with regulatory and governance developments.
During the year, the Company provided all members of the
Board with updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional
development courses and seminars to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has devised a training
record to assist the Directors to record the training they have
undertaken.

During the year, Messrs. WONG Chun Man, LI Xiang Yu, YANG
Li Ming, TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man Kung received briefings
on updates of accounting standards from the auditors of the
Company at Audit Committee meetings. All of the Directors
were provided with reading materials on the relevant rules and
regulatory updates.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Emolument Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is to ensure the fairness
and competitiveness of total remuneration. The emoluments
of Executive Directors are determined based on the skills,
knowledge, individual performance as well as contributions,
the scope of responsibility and accountability of such Directors,
taking into consideration the Company's performance and
prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) is to ensure that the Non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated
to the Company’s affairs including their participation in
the respective Board committees. The emoluments of Non-
executive Directors are determined with reference to their
experience, duties and knowledge.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELIRS

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Board established the Remuneration Committee in July
2006, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provisions, which have been reviewed from time to
time by the Board to keep them in line with the most up-to-
date requirements. The Committee currently comprises one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. CUl Ming Hong and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. WONG
Chun Man, TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man Kung, and is chaired
by Mr. TSE Yung Hoi. The most up-to-date written terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company's website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s emolument
policy and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing such policy. Prior to making its
recommendations, the Committee consults the Chairman
of the Board and the Executive Directors and takes into
consideration factors including the Group's performance
and profitability, experience, duties and time commitment
of Directors, prevailing marketing conditions, salaries
paid by comparable companies, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The Committee has adopted the operation
model where it performs an advisory role to the Board,
with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management. The Committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Directors and employees of
the Company. No Director was involved in deciding his own
remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
year, and the attendance record of individual Committee
members are set out as follows:

/\##’E

S

EENENEEAEZME (&)

FHESE (&)
GHEEENENRRIT—ReR £8
BEKE T HETHRIMT -

Number of

meetings

attended/held

BHE R

2RRE

Mr. TSE Yung Hoi" (Chairman) HBELEO (FE) 1/1
Mr. CUI Ming Hong™ ERRREAED 1/1
Mr. WONG Chun Man® FEXEED 11
Mr. NG Man Kung® R EED 11
Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT® Geoffrey William FAWCETT % 4@ 0/0
Mr. Andrew David ROSS? Andrew David ROSS5E A 0/0
Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON® Charles Robert LAWSONZ%E & @ 0/0
Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren®@ REMEE? 0/0
Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy® MESREE K £ 0/0

Notes:

m Appointed on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company.

@ Resigned on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set
out on pages 41 to 111 were prepared on a going concern
basis. Financial results of the Group are announced in a
timely manner in accordance with statutory and/or regulatory
requirements.

During the year, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited ("HLB") as the external auditors. Apart from
providing audit services, HLB also reviewed the interim results
of the Group. The fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by HLB for the year ended 30 September
2016 amounted to approximately HK$1,300,000 and
HK$300,000 respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of HLB are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 38 to 40.
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LEEARRSE
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued) BMEREZ(£)
Internal Controls A 2B BE 2

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of EFZS@EUAEBE AP ELRZGL2EE
internal controls and for reviewing their effectiveness. During & M@sIEB R - RER AR A TR
the year, the Company conducted reviews on the effectiveness  EXFIREHAEEB NHELRK2E
of the Group’s internal control systems as required by the Code  IH#ETIR S MEDRER QTG 218
Provisions, covering financial, operational and compliance ReEREEARRERERE  BRER
controls and risk management functions, and including  RAGEE MU EERBESTEOER -
reviews on the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and BIER K BIRELEHAEERS
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s FE e

accounting and financial report function.

Audit Committee EREEY

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in RRBZBEREEER _STNF+ A
December 2004, with written terms of reference in compliance k37 > EEEHEEZF A TFEIEX 2R TE
with the Code Provisions, which have been reviewed from WEREEEMHEFHUFTEETRT -
time to time by the Board to keep them in line with the most ZE@HFHMAIENTES T AD
up-to-date requirements. The Committee currently comprises — STAE MBIV AEENUNR =RB I IFEHITE
two Non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. LI Xiang Yu and == BIEEX AL - B S LA KRR XH L
YANG Li Ming and three Independent Non-executive Directors, AR WA T EXEE R EEE - BIZE
namely, Messrs. WONG Chun Man, TSE Yung Hoi and NG Man  E&€ZS#HEEHEZr A AR A HLE
Kung, and is chaired by Mr. WONG Chun Man. The most up- Bl o

to-date written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are

available on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and has held EBXZZEEeHNEFERE W EHBRTE
regular meetings to assist the Board in reviewing the ZH UHMEZEESRIAAEE 2 HBERE
effectiveness of the Group's financial reporting process, B NEREIE KRR E IR Rt 2 B R -
internal controls and risk management systems. The ZEBE@ERANAZHBKHRE FRLE
Committee monitors the integrity of the Company’s financial BARFHREZTEN UREBHES
statements, annual report and accounts and half-year report, BEERNBREH G ZTESHEH
and reviews significant financial report judgments contained — BIF§TRE  REKER - AEPEIE L ERE
therein. It reviews, makes recommendations and reports to ERFAUNAREE AESERAEES
the Board on findings relating to the financial statements,  {EHRF - HBEELRE - ZECIER
reports and accounts, systems of internal controls and AR A ERHNIEEAZ ERED 2 BE (R - 3R AZ BUATD
risk management and compliance issues. The Committee  ZHEE K& FIMNEZEEN 2 BBE & ERE(EH
also oversees the Company’s relationship with the external EREZ -ZE AR EEMLEREZ
auditors, reviews auditors’ letter of engagement and make K ESERAHNIBAZ ERAT 2 B L1 N B BT A K
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and  B|ZXBREZAEME - ESFMIMNEZE
re-appointment of external auditors. It is empowered to  FiZ BIBZ M EZEMMEEIREIR L 2T
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence fIEATHANEEBZOE -FEZEZEE
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process #HEFREERNBITERE -

in accordance with applicable standards. It reviews external

auditors’ management letter and any material queries raised

by the auditors to the management and the management’s

response. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient

resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

_o-"'fﬂ-'--ﬂ-.
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S

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee discussed with the
management of the Company the internal controls and
financial reporting matters, and reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control systems. The Audit
Committee also met with the external auditors and reviewed
the annual and interim reports of the Company.

The Audit Committee members met twice during the year, and
the attendance records of individual Committee members are
set out below:

A#M
BEREF& &)
EREEE® (&)

REN BRZEQRARAZERED
MR R BEREEETA R I
EHNAKEMEN S ﬂ"‘?—iE‘J&\f1§|J&$
EEAREERR AR L -BRE
TRESNEZBEEH REHMARRZF

W& R EHRE -

/\E

EZZEERERNFARRITMASE
g Bz HFELHEINMT

Number of

meetings

attended/held

BHE 81T

BRRE

Mr. WONG Chun Man™ (Chairman) FEXLEED (EEF) 171

Mr. LI Xiang Yu® FRHEED 0/1

Mr. YANG Li Ming® BB AED 1/1

Mr. TSE Yung Hoi® HBBRED 1/1

Mr. NG Man Kung® RXHFEED 11

Mr. Andrew David ROSS® Andrew David ROSS/t 4@ 1/1

Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT® Geoffrey William FAWCETTSE 4@ 1/1

Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON® Charles Robert LAWSONZE A @ 171

Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren®@ SEMEE? 11
Notes: Wit -

m Appointed on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company.

@ Resigned on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for
guiding and monitoring the Company in discharging its
duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to various Board
committees which have been established by the Board to
deal with different aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless
otherwise specified in their respective written terms of
reference as approved by the Board, these Board committees
are governed by the Company’s Articles of Association as well
as the Board's policies and practices (in so far as the same are
not in conflict with the provision contained in the Articles of
Association).
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ERELIRS

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continued)

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of
implementing its strategies and the day-to-day operation to
the management of the Company under the leadership of
the Executive Directors. Clear guidance has been made as
to the matters that should be reserved to the Board for its
decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital, finance
and financial reporting, internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. WONG Man
Yiu who is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. WONG assists the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that the Board's
policy and procedures including those on governance matters
are followed.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication Strategies

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to its
communication with the shareholders, with the objective of
ensuring effective and timely dissemination of information
to shareholders. Information would be communicated to
shareholders mainly through the Company’s corporate
communications including interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. These publications are sent to
the shareholders in a timely manner and are also available on
the website of the Company.

i
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LEETAIRE
SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS BRREREBREEBR (&)
(continued)
Communication Strategies (continued) BAKEE (&)

The Chairman of the Board, members of the Board and EFECXF EFLNE RINEZEAETH
external auditors attended the 2016 annual general meeting HERZZE—RF=ZAT—BREITZ2AR
of the Company (“AGM") held on 11 March 2016. The AT —RERFAFAE ([RRAFK
attendance record of the Directors at the AGM is set out &) BFERNREBEFEASHFE ZLHH

below: R ONNE
Number of AGM
attended/held
BHE BITRRE
BERXKERY
Executive Directors: HITEF:
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian® EIRFLAEOD 1/1
Mr. SO Haw Herman® BRI EY 1/1
Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy® MEEEBE e O 11
Mr. SUNG Yee Keung, Ricky® RERLESD 11
Non-executive Directors: FHITESF:
Mr. DU Jun® (Chairman) HERED (EF) 0/0
Mr. LI Xiang Yu® FRHEED 0/0
Mr. CUI Ming Hong® ERRREEY 0/0
Mr. YANG Li Ming® B BRSEE 0/0
Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren® SEBmEEO 11
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIFNTESF:
Mr. WONG Chun Man® FRERXEE® 0/0
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi® A BB EW 0/0
Mr. NG Man Kung® RXHFED 0/0
Mr. Andrew David ROSS® Andrew David ROSS%t &£ 0/1
Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT® Geoffrey William FAWCETTSE4£® 0/1
Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON® Charles Robert LAWSON% A6 0/1
Notes: B &t -
M Appointed as Non-executive Director on 3 February 2016 and 0 RIE-RFE_R=ZHEZERIIFNTE
re-designated as Executive Director on 11 March 2016. EMRZE-AEZA+—RERATAH
TESR-
@ Appointed on 3 February 2016. @ RIE-RF-A=REZ{E-
®  Resigned on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual O ARERREFRGHERENZZE—RF
general meeting of the Company. = RA+—H#fE-
@ Appointed on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual W ARERREFRGHEREBR_ZE—RF
general meeting of the Company. —A+—HEZ{E-

Shareholders may direct enquires about their shareholdings to the X3 A] H#EAIA R AR 1D 8@ F &L E B
Company's Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite information BRI EARMERE ) - PR AT A RERH 2 #E
of the Company is publicly available, shareholders and the  KW:'BREMARKEEAIBRBENARD
investment community may at any time make enquiry in respect of A AULIE M 2SR5 N EE 4L - B &
the Company in writing at our head office in Hong Kong by post, BB HF XA A QAT 2@ ERIEEE
facsimile or email via the numbers and email address provided on ~ BHAMHFER KB B ARG REEH
the Company’s website or through the Company’s Investor Relations ~ {REAR] ( LB AR BRI A A FE R [EEE R
Adviser whose contact details are provided in the “Corporate  —&if2ft) IR &E M

Information” section of this Annual Report. -
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ERELIRS

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(continued)
Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any
two or more shareholders or any one shareholder which is a
clearing house (or its nominee) (in either case) holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings can
make a requisition to convene and put forward proposals
at an extraordinary general meeting. The requisition must
specify the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant requisitionist(s) and deposited at the head office of
the Company in Hong Kong.

Shareholders may put forward their enquires about the
Company to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong or by email or through
the Investor Relations Adviser of the Company.

lobal Tech (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016 .
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Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian (“Mr. HUANG")

Mr. HUANG, aged 55, is an experienced businessman in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). During the period from
October 2000 to March 2015, Mr. HUANG worked in {543
& AHR A EERYISD A E(CITIC Networks Limited — Shenzhen
Branch*), a whollyowned subsidiary under FE PR ZEEA
R 2 B(CITIC Group Corporation*), in the capacity of general
manager and was responsible for managing the operation
of the Shenzhen Branch including budgeting, development,
operations and strategies in the region of southern and
eastern Guangdong as well as liaising with corresponding
governmental departments. Since 2009, Mr. HUANG has been
acting as deputy managing director (8|E % &) of Guoan (HK)
Holdings Limited, the immediate holding company of Road
Shine Developments Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. SO Haw, Herman (“Mr. SO")

Mr. SO, aged 34, is a holder of a Master Degree of Business
Administration at the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. Mr. SO has experiences in banking services,
commercial and residential real estate investment and
development, developments and operations in information
technology industry, mergers and acquisitions and general
management. Mr. SO had worked in China Construction Bank
(Asia) Corp. Ltd., Hong Kong for more than three and a half
years. Subsequently, Mr. SO took up the role as a director in a
private business group specialised in real estate development
projects and investment in Hong Kong and the PRC. For
the period from June 2011 to August 2015, Mr. SO was an
executive director of Gold Tat Group International Limited
(stock code: 8266), engaging in the businesses of information
technology and electronic parts trading.

Mr. DU Jun (“Mr. DU")

Mr. DU, aged 47, has been appointed as Non-executive
Director with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 11 March 2016. Mr. DU
graduated from Shaanxi College of Finance and Economics
with a Master Degree of Economics. He was an engineer in
the early years, until 1996 he joined Beijing Securities Limited
and has become very experienced in finance industry over the
years.

*  For identification purpose only
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HUMAN CAPITAL
ATEEF

In 2005, Mr. DU joined CITIC Guoan Group* and became the
capital operation manager in 2006. In 2015, he was appointed
the deputy general manager of CITIC Guoan Group*, mainly
responsible for capital operation, fund management and
overseas investment management. At the same time, he is
also a director or a member of the senior management of
the subsidiary companies of CITIC Guoan Group* including
investment, elderly services and winery businesses.

Mr. LI Xiang Yu (“Mr. LI")

Mr. LI, aged 48, has been appointed as Non-executive Director
with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 11 March 2016. Mr. LI graduated
from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor Degree
of Economics. In 1995, he got the qualification of Senior
Accountant in Beijing and has been very experienced in the
finance industry for years.

Mr. LI joined CITIC Guoan Group* in 2000 and became the
deputy manager and manager in finance department in
2002 and 2007 respectively. In 2015, he became the deputy
general manager of CITIC Guoan Group*, mainly responsible
for financial management etc. In the meantime, he is also a
director of the subsidiary companies of CITIC Guoan Group*
including technology, asset management, travel investment
and hotel businesses.

Mr. CUI Ming Hong (“Mr. CUI")

Mr. CUI, aged 50, has been appointed as Non-executive
Director with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 11 March 2016. Mr. CUI got
his professional qualification of Physics and graduated in the
Capital Normal University (ex-Beijing Normal College).

In 1998, Mr. CUI joined CITIC Guoan Group* and became
the deputy manager and manager in integrated planning
department in 1999 and 2007 respectively. In 2015, he
became the deputy general manager of CITIC Guoan Group¥*,
mainly responsible for business strategic planning and project
management etc.

At the same time, Mr. CUI is also a director of the subsidiary

companies of CITIC Guoan Group* including properties,
investment, asset management and winery businesses.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. YANG Li Ming (“Mr. YANG")

Mr. YANG, aged 58, has been appointed as Non-executive
Director with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 11 March 2016. Mr. YANG
graduated from B A R E TI2 £ T2 20 for electrical
engineering qualification. He has also got the professional
qualification as Engineer from B A R NE B BUEE0 and
was an engineer in his earlier years.

Mr. YANG joined CITIC Guoan Group* in 1993. In 2007, Mr.
YANG became the deputy officer of the board of directors
office of the group and was promoted to general officer of
the group in 2011. Mr. YANG has played a role in different
subsidiary companies and businesses of the group over the
years and has become very experienced in integrated and
operational management.

Mr. WONG Chun Man (“Mr. WONG")

Mr. WONG, aged 40, has been appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director with effect from the conclusion of
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 11
March 2016. He is a holder of a Bachelor Degree of Business
Administration at the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
WONG has experiences in corporate finance and financial
media. Mr. WONG is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Chartered Financial Analyst
of the CFA Institute. Mr. WONG has worked as a senior auditor
at PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong from 1999-2001. Mr.
WONG has been the finance director at Neo Media Investment
Management Group Limited since 2006 and is a managing
partner at Share News Media Company Limited since 2014.
He is a member of the 12th Yanbian Korean Autonomous
Prefecture in Jilin Province of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FBIARBUGHEEZE T ZESE M
BB AMNEEEEE).

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. TSE Yung Hoi (“Mr. TSE")

Mr. TSE, aged 64, has been appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 March
2016. Mr. TSE graduated from English studies from the
Department of Foreign Languages and Literatures of Fudan
University in July 1975. He is currently the Chairman and Non-
executive Director of BOCI-Prudential Asset Management
Limited. Mr. TSE serves as council member of HKSAR Financial

Services Development Council,

member of Election Affairs

Commission (Financial Services), Standing Committee Member
of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce and Permanent
Honorary President of Hong Kong Chinese Securities
Association. Mr. TSE is also the Independent Non-executive
Director of iOne Holdings Limited (stock code: 982), BOCOM
International Holdings Company Limited and Shenzhen
Qianhai Financial Holdings Company Ltd and the Non-
executive Director of the DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 620). Mr. TSE was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the Government of HKSAR in

2013.

Mr. NG Man Kung (“Mr. NG")

Mr. NG, aged 64, has been appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 March
2016. Mr. NG graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with an attendance certificate in banking. Mr. NG
has over 28 years of management experience in banking
industry. He had worked as a business consultant at China
Orient Asset Management (International) Holding Limited,
a company principally engaged in investment, from January
2014 to April 2015. He worked at Chiyu Banking Corporation
Ltd. from July 1969 to December 2012, and was its chief
executive from April 1992 to July 2012. Mr. NG was an
honorary president of the 37th Chinese Bankers Club, Hong
Kong, a member of the Council of Hong Kong Polytechnic
University from April 1999 to March 2003 and a member of
the 10th Fujian Province Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (FB A RBUAE 3
FTERBEAZEEZE). Mr. NG is an Independent Non-
executive Director of Fujian Holdings Limited (stock code: 181)
since June 2014 and an Independent Non-executive Director

of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (stock code:

1395)

since September 2014. On 23 March 2016, Mr. NG is also
appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of Topsearch
International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2323).
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Report of the Directors

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 30 September 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 30
September 2016 by business and geographical segments is set
out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

A fair review of the Group’s business, including the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, the important events
affecting the Group that have occurred after 30 September
2016 and the likely future development, is set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 6 and
“"Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 11.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 September
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 41.

The Directors resolved not to make any payment of an interim
dividend (2015: HK$ Nil) and do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend (2015: HK$ Nil) for the year ended 30
September 2016.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 30 September 2016 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 44
to 45 and Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 30 September 2016 are set
out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 30 September 2016.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group at 30 September
2016 are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 30
September 2016 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian®

Mr. SO Haw Herman®@

Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy®

Mr. SUNG Yee Keung, Ricky®

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. DU Jun® (Chairman)
Mr. LI Xiang Yu®

Mr. CUI Ming Hong®

Mr. YANG Li Ming*®

Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren®

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Chun Man®

Mr. TSE Yung Hoi®

Mr. NG Man Kung®

Mr. Andrew David ROSS®

Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT®
Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON®

Notes:

m Appointed as Non-executive Director on 3 February 2016 and
re-designated as Executive Director on 11 March 2016.

@ Appointed on 3 February 2016.

@ Resigned on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company.

@ Appointed on 11 March 2016 after the conclusion of the annual

general meeting of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS (continued)

The resignation of the resigning Directors was due to change
in control of the Company after the close of unconditional
cash offer in relation to the acquisition of all the issued
shares of the Company made by Road Shine Developments
Limited, the major shareholder of the Company. Each of the
resigned Directors had confirmed to the Board that he had
no disagreement with the Board and that there were no
other matters in relation to his resignation that needed to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. DU Jun, Mr. LI Xiang Yu and Mr. WONG
Chun Man shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
27 to 30.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of distributable reserves of the Company at 30
September 2016 are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 112.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting have a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No transactions were entered into by the Group during the
year ended 30 September 2016, which constitute connected
transactions under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had material beneficial interests,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at any time
during the year ended 30 September 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no Director had been recorded as having
interests in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 30 September 2016, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code").

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of Directors’ liability.

i
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Report of the Directors

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SECURITIES AND FUTURE ORDINANCE

At 30 September 2016, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under section 336 of the SFO shows that the
following companies (not being Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had long positions of 5% or more in the shares
of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity

BR & 540

EFERE

REEBZRAERIETHREZ
FTERRREMAL ZES

RZZE—R"FNLA=+TH REEHFLES
BERPIEIB6M(FECTERRAMAR -
THAR (ERRFEFIESTHAER)
RBEE 5 KBGO EXVEE2 KR35 H
BATHBEZRNARIRD 2T B P HEB5% K
A EZHEsm:

Approximate

Beneficial owner

EnlEE A

Interest of controlled
corporation

TIEHLEE R

Interest of controlled
corporation

ZEHEEE R

Road Shine Developments Limited

Guoan (HK) Holdings Limited (note)
BZ (B8)ERERAR (MiE)

P EEZEEAR AR
(CITIC Guoan Group*) (note)
P ERZESEER AR ()

Note: Road Shine Developments Limited is held as to 100% by Guoan
(HK) Holdings Limited, which in turn is held as to 100% by CITIC
Guoan Group*. Under the SFO, each of Guoan (HK) Holdings
Limited and CITIC Guoan Group* is deemed to be interested in
all the shares held by Road Shine Developments Limited.

* For identification purpose only

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares shareholding
LZERNEE FRESNBEIL
2,749,210,892 53.218%
2,749,210,892 53.218%
2,749,210,892 53.218%

BfzE: Road Shine Developments Limitedf & %2
(BB)IERERAEFAEI100% i
BL (B8 ERERAFBFERESE
B AR R AFEHF100%H# = $ETJ§M%&
HEGRIN B (FEB)ERERA
‘:F‘%Tz%ﬁlﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁémad
Shine Developments Limited#¥ & 2 2 Z5M%
R A R

* EEEHS
.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SECURITIES AND FUTURE ORDINANCE

(continued)

Save as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
having an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as at 30 September 2016.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 5 March 2015, a share option scheme (the

“Option

Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

No share option has been granted under the Option Scheme

since its adoption.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration

of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company were entered into or existed during the year ended

30 September 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 30
September 2016 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers

BREIHZRBERHIBETFHREZ
FERRRHEMA LT ZER (&)

SR EXHEREENN R-E—R"FAA=T
B #EEMEEARNREZ D HAEERK
M2 ERIRBE Z AL BENRIBEESK
HERMIFEIB6HREFEZRRATA -

fE IR M

R-T-—HF=AEA RARFRRER
—IARERERT 8 (BT El)) - BBAxE
PRl RAAK BERBZERLE
P4 -

EEEYN
RBE_ZE-R"FAA=ZTBELFER"

ARRITEREEXBAIMNERR
EERITRIERINFEEAEGL-

FTEFEFRHER

AEBzIBHERAEFPFBEE_Z—X
Eﬂﬂ TELSFEREBERELHEER

and customers are as follows: salse' (N
Percentage
of the total
purchases/sales
accounted for
Fribigg ~
HEHH
Batt
Purchases EEH
— the largest supplier - A ER 99%
— five largest suppliers combined -h AR AR 99%
Sales iHE 7
— the largest customer -RAKP 64%
— five largest customers combined -AREFR%E 64%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder

(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%

of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the

five largest suppliers or customers of the Group noted above.
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Report of the Directors

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

PENSION SCHEME

On 1 December 2000, the Group set up a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “MPF Ordinance”). The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group and are under the control of an independent trustee.

The Group and its employees are each required to make a
mandatory contribution of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries
to the MPF Scheme, subject to a maximum contribution of
HK$1,500 per month during the year ended 30 September
2016 as prescribed by the MPF Ordinance. Members are
entitled to 100% of the employer's mandatory contributions
as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all benefits
derived from the mandatory contributions must be preserved
until an employee reaches the retirement age of 65 or in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

In addition to the mandatory contributions, the Group makes
voluntary contributions for certain employees during the
year. In any event, the total monthly contributions made by
the Group to an employee are capped at 5% of the relevant
employee’s basic salaries.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and a
resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the said meeting.

On behalf of the Board
DU Jun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 December 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report

VR

HL

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GLOBAL TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Global Tech (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 41 to 111, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 30 September 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
30 September 2016, and of the Group's financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B SE RS

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to
Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements which
indicate that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$25,299,000 during the year ended 30 September 2016
and, as of that date, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
total assets by approximately HK$2,071,000. These conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in Note 3(b) indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 19 December 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HeRaRkEtZEKEE

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
—E—RE —E—hF

Fff EBETR BT T

Revenue g 7 103,401 86,695
Cost of sales $HE AR (75,668) (60,685)
Gross profit E 7 27,733 26,010
Other revenue H bz 8 584 81
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RS HT (31) (688)
Administrative expenses T (53,383) (42,668)
Other operating expenses Hhge s (73) (6,058)
Finance costs I W 9 (129) (42)
Loss before taxation B 3% AT &5 18 10 (25,299) (23,365)
Taxation I8 11 - 20
Loss for the year rEFEEFE (25,299) (23,345)
Other comprehensive income Hit2mEKA
Item that may be reclassified HENREN 7 HERD

subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEA:

Exchange differences on translating & /BN ER 2 [EH =58

foreign operations 133 5,809

Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEBA > MRHEE

for the year, net of tax 133 5,809
Total comprehensive loss AEEXHBELR

for the year (25,166) (17,536)

Loss for the year attributable to A2 TAHEEAEBEIEESIE

owners of the Company (25,299) (23,345)
Total comprehensive loss AAREEANEERFERZEH

for the year attributable to EiRAHE

owners of the Company (25,166) (75315)

Loss per share attributable to ARAREBEAEEEBRES
owners of the Company

Basic and diluted HAREE 13 HK$7% i HK$ #&

(0.005) 7T (0.005)7T

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEM 2T ALSHEEMBHHRE 2 — 5
consolidated financial statements. i

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FeEMBIKRAR

At 30 September 2016 RZZE—"FNLA=1H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-XEF —E—RF
B o BT T BMF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M S R 14 3,343 2,918
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 16 5,950 5,950
9,293 8,868
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 1,432 2,272
Trade receivables e E 5 8RR 18 1,137 1,309
Prepayments, deposits and other FEMRIE R e RE M ER
receivables EQE] 19 8,415 7,971
Financial assets at fair value through &EBE A TFBETIERZ
profit or loss TREE 20 204 177
Tax recoverable A] Y B 4 38 = 20
Pledged time deposits EEFEHEFER 21 5,044 5,030
Cash and bank balances R e MIR1TH 8 22 52,923 14,298
69,155 31,077
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FETE SR 23 2,622 4,550
Accrued charges and other payables &=t 3 [ E {th g 1~ 7018 24 23,397 8,011
Bank borrowings RITIEE 25 4,500 4,500
Loan from the immediate holding BEERARER
company 26 50,000 =
80,519 16,850
Net current (liabilities)/assets e (EE)  EBEFRE (11,364) 14,227
Total assets less current liabilities AEERABEE (2,071) 23,095
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) EEFE (2,071) 23,095
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEeEMBIKAR

At 30 September 2016 R=-ZE—XFNLA=1+H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
—E—RE —E—hF

Fff EBETR BT T

Equity HEm

Capital and reserves attributable ZAAQREEABEERRFE

to owners of the Company

Share capital & 7R 27 51,659 51,659
Reserves E] (53,730) (28,564)
Total equity RS (2,071) 23,095

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 December

2016 and signed on its behalf by:

HUANG Zhen Qian
EiR®
Executive Director
HITEF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

REMBREENR_Z-—RET_ATAN
AEE=eERRENE Wh THE
ERREFERE:

SO Haw Herman

B
Executive Director
HITESE
BEMY 2 M sE Bt F4R G B E 2 — &6
é_j\ o

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SeEaERE

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

Capital Exchange
Share Share Capital  redemption difference  Accumulated

capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
k& R&aE EXfifE HERORE EXZERRE £t 58 &t
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
BT EETr EETr EETr EETn EETr EETR

(note a) (note b)

(Mita) (Hitb)

At 1 October 2014 RZE-MF+/-H 51,659 457 804 2,450 160 32 (471.474) 40,631
Loss for the year rEEERE - - - - - (23,345) (23,345)

Other comprehensive income 2 EMA
ltem that may be reclassified ~ ERA#EFAEEREL
subsequently to profit or loss: E§ -

Exchange differences REBNSEH ELER
on translating foreign
operations - - - - 5,809 - 5,809

Total comprehensive income/  AEEEEMA/ (EE)
g

(loss) for the year - - - - 5,809 (23,345) (17,536)

At30 September 2015and  AZE-EEAA=THER
1 October 2015 “Z-1%E+H-A 51,659 457,804 2,450 160 5,841 (494,819) 23,095

Loss for the year TEEFR = = - -
Other comprehensive income ~ E-f 2 EMA
Item that may be reclassified  ER s ER A BZREL

subsequently to profit or loss: B F -

(25,299) (25,299)

Exchange differences BEBNEHERER
on translating foreign
operations - - - - 133 - 133

Total comprehensive income/ ~ AEFRENA/ (BE)
(loss) for the year &% - - - - 133 (25,299) (25,166)

At 30 September 2016 RZB-RERAZTA 51,659 457,804 2,450 160 5,974 (520,118) (20m)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FeHREBR

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the repurchase of
shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the financial year of
30 September 2000. These repurchased shares were cancelled
upon repurchase and, accordingly, the nominal value of the
cancelled shares was credited to capital redemption reserve and
the aggregate consideration paid was debited to the retained
earnings and share premium account.

Exchange difference reserve

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their functional
currencies to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange difference reserve. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy of foreign
currencies set out in Note 3(h).

iEE

(a)

(b)

EXEDRFE
BABOFEER-_STEFNA=1H
WP BFEFEEETRBRARXZMARLD A
(TEEZFT ) BB AR R ° %2 W R A
MRBEEEH Bt FHERO2EE
BMABABEFE RENERERRFRE
B R B £ s B BRI -

X =R
AEEKBIINEBZEEFEHNEEE
BERAKE 2GR (BB EL
ZEREREERNEMCE2EBARNER
I REHEE X Z R REA - LR EHEREMN
AE3(h) &S 2 SNE & 5T BR BRI

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEReRE

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—RE — 7 4E
BT T B FIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBIHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation BT AT E R (25,299) (23,365)
Adjustments for: FEIAR :
Depreciation e 1,396 1,163
Bad debts written off R 152 B i 5H 63 25
Unrealised (gain)/loss from financial FHBREFAANTEBEYEZ
assets at fair value through profit or AERLSHEE (WZF),/
loss, net B3 185 58 (27) 52
Loss on written off of property, plant WEEZE - WE M &E 2 EE
and equipment 10 10
Allowance for inventories FaEREE 58 294
Reversal of allowance for inventories BEFERE (72) (160)
Written off of inventories 7 E M iE 564 67
Dividend income R B A (5) (3)
Interest income B YA (16) (31)
Interest expense FBERAX 129 42
Unrealised exchange losses, net RETHE N EEFE - 6,026
Operating cash flows before movements “EELE A2 EMERE
in working capital (23,199) (15,880)
Decrease in inventories FERD 290 1,782
Decrease in trade receivables FEUW B 5 BR KR 110 2,817
Increase in financial assets at fair value  #:EEZE A A EEETEY £/
through profit or loss B EE N - (229)
Increase in prepayments, A IR - 12 e RE MR YR
deposits and other receivables 2 n (314) (426)
Decrease in trade payables A E BRI (1,717) (23)
Increase in accrued charges and FESTE A N2 B th & < R IEE AN
other payables 15,385 3,595
Cash used in operating activities R IRGE A 7 H S (9,445) (8,364)
Profit tax refund REIFEH 20 -
Profit tax paid EAFER - (20)
Net cash used in operating activities R R(E R 7 e R (9.425) (8,384)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEBeRER

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
—E-REF —E—hHF
BT T B F T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBZHERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant BEME BEKEHE

and equipment (1,831) (1,416)
Dividend received 2R B 5 3
Interest received 2 F S 16 31
Increase in pledged time deposits 2B E B F SR IE AN (14) (5,030)
Net cash used in investing activities REXKFER 2R F5 (1,824) (6,412)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETE2HERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest paid EARFE (134) (32)
Increase in loan from the immediate BEEZERAREFIG N

holding company 50,000 =
Increase in bank borrowings R 1T & N 40,500 4,500
Repayments of bank borrowings BRRITEE (40,500) -
Net cash generated from financing BMEETHEE RS FRE

activities 49,866 4,468
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRREEEY

and cash equivalents i ORd) B8 38,617 (10,328)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUZReRESEEY

beginning of the year 14,298 24,646
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXxEEH o ¥

changes 8 (20)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe end FRZEERRSEEY

of the year 52,923 14,298
Analysis of the balances of cash and BE&RRESEEYEH DT

cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances H & RIR1T 48R 52,923 14,298

BAERR (ZER) BRAT —B—AFFER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
9 December 1998 as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares have a primary listing on the Stock
Exchange and a secondary listing on Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 2903 Prosperity Place, 6 Shing Yip
Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and the principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
regard Road Shine Developments Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands as the immediate
holding company, and R{EBEIZEB AR A A (CITIC
Guoan Group), a company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China as the ultimate holding company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")

The accounting policies adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2016 are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Group’s annual financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2015. No new and
amendments to HKFRSs are mandatorily effective for the
current financial year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

DNAEHR
ARBAR—NANANF+ZANBEFR
EREEMKLA—HEREZAERA
A EEROEBXAEAS — Lhit
7 RRFINEEZZ AR QA
BAEE_ Emhfs-

RNRA) 2P ERR AP.0.Box 309,
Ugland House, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands-
MAREEZEFHEMNREBNF
ERIE X K657 50 B B 52903 % °

ARBZEBEHR/WEER - HE
EMNBRAR 2 TEXBHNGZE I
&M RES.
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AAREEZREEER AR ARRZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative’
HKAS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosure Initiative?2

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses?

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41  Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle'

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement
of Share-based, Payment
Transactions?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
(Amendments) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16 Leases*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date

to be determined

R RAEBITE BB
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A1) ca)
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fE w2
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REBGFTER EEEE Vb
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EBeERE27H BUMKRS
(1BFTA) 2R A
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—FEEBR)
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o5k
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.

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

2.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 adds to the existing HKFRS 9. HKFRS 9 (As
revised in 2014) introduces new impairment requirement
for all financial assets that are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss and amendments to the previously
finalised classification and measurement requirements.

A new “expected loss” impairment model in HKFRS 9
replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. For
financial assets at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, an entity will now always
recognise (at a minimum) 12 months of expected losses
in profit or loss. For trade receivables, there is a practical
expedient to calculate expected credit losses using a
provision matrix based on historical loss patterns or
customer bases.

HKFRS 9 also introduces additional application guidance
to clarify the requirements for contractual cash flows
of a financial asset to give rise to payments that are
Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (“SPPI”), one
of the two criteria that need to be met for an asset to
be measured at amortised cost, which may result in
additional financial assets being measured at amortised
cost.

A third measurement category has also been added
for debt instruments — fair value through other
comprehensive income which applies to debt instruments
that meet the SPPI contractual cash flow characteristic
test.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have significant impact on the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may have significant impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

2.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash payments of the lease liability into
a principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Also, the right-of-use asset and these lease liabilities
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for these two types of leases differently.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 to the financial position and financial position
of the Group. It is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of the application of HKFRS 16
until the Group performs a detailed review.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have material impact
on the financial position and financial performance of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set-out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the year presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
HKFRSs, which is a collective term that includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO"). These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules.

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding preparation of
financial statements and directors’ reports and
audits became effective for the Company for the
financial year ended 30 September 2016. Further,
the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual consolidated financial
statements have been amended with reference
to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly, the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 September 2016
have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the financial year ended 30 September 2015
are presented or disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to
being discloses under the predecessor CO or Listing
Rules but not under the new CO or amended
Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 &HZ=—F

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation

—RNFNA=TRHIFE

FTESTHTHREME (&)

(b) MEEE

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$25,299,000 (2015: HK$23,365,000) during
the year ended 30 September 2016 and, as of that
date, the Group’s total liabilities exceeded its total
assets by approximately HK$2,071,000 (2015: total
assets exceeded total liabilities by approximately
HK$23,095,000) and the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$11,364,000 (2015: current assets exceeded
current liabilities by approximately HK$14,227,000).
The Group is dependent upon the financial
support from Road Shine Developments Limited,
the immediate holding company. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Directors have made an assessment and
concluded that the Group is able to continue as a
going concern for at least the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period and to meet
its obligations, as and when they fall due, having
regard to the following:

- the immediate holding company confirms
to provide adequate financial support to the
Group as is necessary to ensure its continuing
operation for a period of at least twelve
months from the end of the reporting period;
and

—  the immediate holding company agreed to
extend the loan from the immediate holding
company to the Group for a twelve months
period from the date of its maturity in the
coming financial year.

Consequently, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would result should the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements is the historical
cost convention.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHERFEHEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (continued) (b) RBEXE(£&)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Llevel 1T inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities (including structured entities) controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e  the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries(continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded
in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’'s share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"),
who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets and liabilities include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, inventories, receivables, other
assets, operating cash and exclude mainly available-
for-sale financial assets and tax recoverable.
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and
exclude items such as tax payable, deferred tax and
certain corporate provisions.

Geographical information is not presented as the
majority of the Group’s revenue is attributed to
customers in Hong Kong and the majority of assets
are located in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2016 &#HZ_—Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Revenue recognition

()

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

i. Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed;

ii.  Service income is recognised when services are
rendered;

iii. Sales of financial assets are recognised on a
trade date basis;

iv.  Interest income is recognised, on a time
proportion basis taking into account the
principal outstanding and the effective interest
rate applicable; and

v.  Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
the property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of property, plant and equipment, using the
straight-line method, over their estimated useful
lives. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Computers and equipment 20 - 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Leasehold improvements 20 — 100%
Motor vehicle 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the leases transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHERFEHEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Foreign currencies (h) s

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange difference
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

()

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using
the effective interest method.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits
Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they are accrued to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
or paternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by an independent trustee.
All contributions to the MPF Scheme are charged
to profit or loss as incurred and reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the MPF Scheme prior to vesting fully in
contributions.

The Group also undertakes mandatory pension
schemes covering retirement benefits for its Taiwan
employees as required by relevant legislations and
regulations in Taiwan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHERFEHEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Taxation (k) FE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Taxation (continued) (k) #E(2)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Taxation (continued)

V)

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In general, costs are assigned to
individual items on a weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is the price at which inventories
can be sold in the normal course of business after
allowing for the costs of realisation.

(m) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in the profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(n) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale
("AFS") financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHERFEHEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Financial instruments (continued)

(n) EMIA(#&)

Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method (continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for financial assets other than those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Financial instruments (continued)

(n) £EMIA (&)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

o it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as AFS or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity investments are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEXHE (4

POLICIES (continued)

(n) Financial instruments (continued) (n) €MIA(£&)
Financial assets (continued) ETHEE (&)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged time
deposits and cash and bank balances) are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Financial instruments (continued) (n) £WMIT A (&)
Financial assets (continued) TREE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) TR EERE (&)
e it becoming probable that the borrower will o B Al BY I R B EE 5K
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; HEITMBEHR 3K
or
e the disappearance of an active market for that s ZEeMBEEZERERMSH
financial asset because of financial difficulties. AR B MR K o
For certain categories of financial assets, such as mETENzemEE (EK
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be BOBRR)ME BFmATE
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for BRI A 2 & B i T ZE B Ve
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence B - BUERIEA S HIRRIE
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could ZEBERBEIBEASERTW
include the Group’s past experience of collecting AR HENERERZIRE
payments, an increase in the number of delayed BT EEEE N KRAR
payments in the portfolio past the average credit P LSRR TR B R 2R sk b T A RO,
period, as well as observable changes in national HIRREEEEA-
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the HRIRBHEAN YR S REE
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the mE HRAREEEZ2ERE
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and EZRAEENEHEERKE
the present value of estimated future cash flows SR EFIREFT AR RER
discounted at the financial asset's original effective BREZERE-
interest rate.
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of ARSI S REEM 5 @ &t
the impairment loss is measured as the difference EREEEzeRAEERMEE
between the asset’s carrying amount and the R UAKRLL & B & 2 IR A 1135 1Bl
present value of the estimated future cash flows EPBRENEFTRRRERELZ
discounted at the current market rate of return for a Z R o LR E BB TR R DATE B

similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not R o
be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHERFEHEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Financial instruments (continued)

(n) EMIA(#&)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHKEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Financial instruments (continued)

(n) £EMIA (&)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables,
accrued charges and other payables, loan from the
immediate holding company and bank borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liabilities,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis other than financial liabilities classified
as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2016 &#HZ_—Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

Impairment of tangible assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Provisions (continued)

(r)

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as
a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises
from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. A contingent asset
is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 &HZ=—F

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)
(s) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(

) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is apart, provides key
management personnel services to
the Company or to the parent of the
Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resource or
obligations between related parties.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include AFS
financial assets, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, pledged time
deposits, cash and bank balances, trade payables,
accrued charges and other payables, loan from the
immediate holding company and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 &HZ=—F

4.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

—RNFNA=TRHIFE

4., €@ IR (&)

Categories of financial instruments eI A7
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—ARE —E—RF
BT T BT
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables (including ERMERIE (8
cash and bank balances) SRITAE ) 66,799 27,910
Available-for-sale financial assets —H??Hj EREE 5,950 5,950
Financial assets at FVTPL FHiREm AN FEEIER
EEEE 204 177
Financial liabilities e E
Amortised costs B# R 80,519 16,850

Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk, which result from both its
operating and investing activities. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no major
hedging activities are undertaken by management.

(a) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong,
principally with respect to Hong Kong Dollars.
Hong Kong Dollars are pegged to the United States
Dollars and the foreign exchange sale exposure
between them are considered limited.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. @RI A (&)
Financial risk factors (continued) eHEREE (&)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) mERER (&)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group considers that there is no significant fair
value interest rate risk as the Group does not have
fixed rate borrowings.

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate bank balances
and a variable rate bank borrowing carrying
prevailing interest rates at Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (HIBOR).

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reasonably
possible change in interest rates for bank
balances and the variable rate bank borrowing is
insignificant. No sensitivity analysis is presented.

Price risk

The Group's equity investments classified as
financial assets at FVTPL which is measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period and
expose the Group to price risk.

The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on listed equity securities which quoted on the
Stock Exchange. The management will monitor the
price movements and take appropriate actions when
it is required.

No sensitivity analysis is presented as the Group’s
financial results are not significantly affected by
equity investment price risk.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk

(c)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets. No other financial assets carry a significant
exposure to credit risk.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regards, the Directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in Hong Kong.
The Group also has concentration of credit risk by
customers of approximately 40% (2015: 35%) and
41% (2015: 49%) of total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the two
largest customers respectively.

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluation of
its customers’ financial condition and requires no
collateral from its customers. The impairment loss
in trade receivables is based upon a review of the
expected collectability of all trade receivables.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by regularly
monitoring current and expected liquidity
requirements and ensuring sufficient cash and
cash equivalent to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.
In addition, the management of the Group
continuously monitors forecast and actual cash
flows and matches the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. €I R (#)

Financial risk factors (continued) SRAEBEE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) REELEE (&)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAJAEETEERAE
contractual maturities for its non-derivative financial ZFpE LB R - TRIBIE
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn AMrEERAR BEZFAE
up based on the contractual maturities of the &5 2 F 8 (AREE A #E K #
undiscounted financial liabilities including interest REBRIEEZBERIIN 26
that will accrue to those liabilities except when the A E|EAE R mARE -

Group is entitled and intends to repay the liability
before its maturity.

At 30 September 2016 R-ZE—XR"ERLA=TH
Weighted Total
average contractual Total
effective Within ~ Between 1 Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year and 5 years 5years  cash flow amount
il £ GLESE 5!

RRAE 158 15E55R BBSE SREME AREE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
B¥Fr  BETn  BEfn BETn BRTn

Non-derivative financial #¥fi4¢REE

liabilities
Trade payables EREBHER - 2,622 - - 2,622 2,622
Accrued charges and other  fEzt &M R A e 208
payables - 23,397 - - 23,397 23,397
Bank borrowings BITEE 2.94% 4,505 - - 4,505 4,500
Loan from the immediate ~ ERZRADE
holding company - 50,000 - - 50,000 50,000
80,524 - - 80,524 80,519
At 30 September 2015 R-E—FREhB=1+H
Weighted Total
average contractual Total
effective Within -~ Between 1 Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate Tyear  and 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
HET CLIERE &

LIRS 1€/ 1FEER B#F tHEEE  AKAE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
E¥Fr  EETn  E¥Tn ERTm EETR

Non-derivative financial ~ JEATESRER

liabilities
Trade payables ERESER - 4339 - - 4,339 4,339
Accrued charges and other  fEzt B R MER R
payables - 8,011 - - 8,011 8,011
Bank borrowings BIEE 2.77% 4,505 - = 4,505 4,500
16,855 = = 16,855 16,850

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH

81



82

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

4.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurement

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the
level of fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable.

4.

SRMITA )
AFEENE
BERNEEUATHENEZ
AEESMEEZAFEE

AEERHeMEEN SRS PRIZ
ANFEEFE - TRIEHEBERED
FEEFEZHARBEZIHREE
MEETZEcREEZ A ATFEAE
(BRI AT Z (A E R R A
B) UEBEBEAFEEFEME D
ZATFEEESR(BIRESER)Z
BHo

Fair value at  Fair value at Valuation
30 September 30 September  Fair value techniques
2016 2015 hierarchy  and key inputs
R=B-x% R-T-1F
AMR=+B  NA=TH AYEE
ZAVEE <RAVEE BR MHEEMRIZEBARE
HK$'000 HK$000
BETFT BETFT
Financial assets tHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL & @182 A TEE 5B
LERBE
- Listed equity securities  — EMRAE S 204 177 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in active markets
1Rk RNEBMERE

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the
current and prior years.

Except the above financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis, the Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Annual Report 2016

RAFEERBEFEF14 - $2
4 K B34 7 e e o o

B iz B R AU R T EE
AREZEMEEIN EFRA

RS HIRER B MR E PR
ZEMEERCRAGBRMER
HRFEERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts
(which include variable rate bank borrowings and loan
from the immediate holding company), cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The Directors review the capital structure on a continuous
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with capital. Based
on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, issuance of new share as well as the
addition of new borrowings.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio of bank borrowings and loan from the immediate
holding company over total assets. The Group aims to
maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

The gearing ratios at the balance sheet dates are as
follows:

4.

€RITAR (#)

EARKREE
AEEEEEEAUBRRAEE B
BAELNETHECY YEBARE
18 H R A S A AR
SAEHo ANEE Y BBEEBE
FREBERETE

AEBzEARARBRER (BREF
BHERTEEREERERAAE
) BHekBRAeFEYWRARAE
BAREED (SR BITRA R
)M - EFRITEE LR EARR
BERRERS BN EFZE
BERKAREERE R 2R - 1R
BEFZEZR A5EBEBXNK
BBITHBRO A EEEFERE
BEARE-

AEBEARTEERERERARE
RENREECEERBLRSEE
REREERN - AEEHNKEER
B RGEFERIEKE-

REERAZEERMBHERNT :

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E—XEF —E—FRF

B F T BT T

Total borrowings (note) wiEsE (i) 54,500 4,500
Total assets BEE 78,448 39,945
Gearing ratios BEEBMBEHLE 69.5% 11.3%

Note:

Total borrowings include bank borrowings and loan from the
immediate holding company.

Wit

CRp

I

EERRRITEERARERARE

2

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH

83



84

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 &HZ=—F

5.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The impairment of trade and other receivables are
based on the ongoing evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of the outstanding receivables
and on management’s judgement. From time to
time, the Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade and other debtor
balances are called into doubts, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
provision may be required. Certain receivables may
be initially identified as collectable, yet subsequently
become uncollectable and result in a subsequent
write-off of the related receivable to profit or loss.
Changes in the collectability of trade and other
receivables for which provisions are not made could
affect our results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment to determine the amount of
depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful
lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected
usage, wear and tear of the assets, and technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the market
demands or service output of the assets. The Group
also performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be
valid. The Group tests annually whether the assets
have suffered any impairment. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions and estimates.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Assessment of net realisable value
is based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group also carries
out review of inventories on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for slow-moving items.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments based on information
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment are as follows:

(i)  Trading of telecommunications products

(i) Provision of repair services

(iii) Investments in financial assets

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
for the years ended 30 September 2016 and 2015 is

presented as follows:

(a) Segment revenue and results

e hE kA (2

() HHEERE
FERKA KA Z B FEMRE T
ZBREER ATRRAFELE
REBEIHERERRRITHR
fat e AEER S MEHRBF

BREEMIFE WL FHEM®
TR B -
DEER

Tﬂ%ﬁﬁlw%ﬁﬁ TIERBE
DR RFRIRFT (MR EE S ERR

%ﬁ%Zéﬂ\ﬁi

() BAERES

(i) EHMEERE

EREBEE_ZT—Ek-_ZE—RHFN

A=THLEFEASEBETHREDE

ZEREANMTE

(a) ZEBW K EFE

2016
Trading of
telecommunications  Provision of repair Investments in

products services financial assets Consolidated

ENEmES RUGBER tREERE Re

HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

BETR BETR BETR BETR

Revenue g 8,663 94,711 2 103,401
Segment results PHEE 5,320 (4,113) ) 1,239
Interest income FBBMA 16
Finance costs B (129)
Unallocated expenses FAEL M (26,425)
Loss before taxation BRAER (25,299)
Taxation fiE -
Loss for the year ~EEBR (25,299)

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 &HZ=—F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results (continued)

—RNFNA=TRHIFE

6. DEMEH (&)

(a) DHWEKEE (&)

2015
Trading of
telecommunications  Provision of repair Investments in

products Services financial assets Consolidated

FHEMES REBERS EREERE Fa

HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

BEFT BEFT BEFr BEFT

Revenue Wa 5,788 80,927 (20) 86,695
Segment results PBEE (2,714) (3,128 (17) (5,859)
Interest income MBKA 31
Finance costs BB (42)
Unallocated expenses AAEZH (17,495)
Loss before taxation BH SR (23,365)
Taxation i 0
Loss for the year AEEER (23,345)
Revenue reported above represents revenue 2 i&ZHﬂZﬁT’i?‘aﬁ%ﬂWhg}EE
generated from external customers. There are no EzWm -BE_T-RFENA
intersegment sales for the year ended 30 September _+ Eiﬁflﬁ/“*BFﬁZ§ﬁ¢

2016 (2015: HK$ Nil).

Segment result represents the result generated
from each segment without allocation of central
administrative costs including directors’ salaries,
staff costs, legal and professional fees and taxation.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEFR (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) "HEERERE
2016
Trading of
telecommunications Provision of Investments in
products repair services financial assets Consolidated
ENERES REEERE SHEERE g4
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETT BEFT BEFT
Segment assets PEEE 7,128 12,263 3,338 22,729
Available-forsale financial assets Al it H &S BEE 5,950
Unallocated corporate assets AP AREE 49,769
Consolidated total assets LRBESLE 78,448
Segment liabilities ARARE (476) (8,465) - (8,941)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AR BATAE (71,578)
Consolidated total liabilities RAARLE (80,519)
2015
Trading of
telecommunications Provision of Investments in

products repair services financial assets Consolidated
BNERES R BRK SREERE TA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTT BETTL BEFT BEETT
Segment assets PEEE 7395 13,756 8,811 29,962
Available-for-sale financial assets A/t HESREE 5,950
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AAEAREE 4,033
Consolidated total assets BABERE 39,945
Segment liabilities PHEE (259) (10,965) 5 (11,224)
Unallocated corporate liabilities  KABEAABE (5,626)
Consolidated total liabilities LAaBERE (16,850)

BRER (2K8) BRAT —B-AEFH 87
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 &HZ=—F

—RNFNA=TRHIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (b) "HEERERE (&)

For the purpose of monitoring segment HMEEIE DRI KL D EL D B 2 [

performance and allocating resources between WEIRM S :

segments:

i) All assets are allocated to reportable segments ) FTAEEEZERH
other than AFS financial assets, tax recoverable BowrHtEEemEE
and unallocated corporate assets; and A Yz [B] 7% 18 &ﬂiﬁ fic 2 7]

BERIN:

i) All liabilities are allocated to reportable iy FIBEEEPEREEZEERS
segments other than current tax liabilities and B - e B HA A IE'EL & &k
unallocated corporate liabilities. e R R B ERR AN o

(c) Other segment information (0 HbnHEHR
2016
Trading of
telecommunications Provision of  Investments in

products  repair services  financial assets Unallocated Consolidated
ENERER RELERE SHEERE i) &4
HK$'000 HK$"000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
EEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT

Capital expenditure YN 207 350 - 1,274 1,831

Depreciation nE 3 585 - 788 1,39

Loss on written off of property, #i#E9%  BERFE

plant and equipment LB - 10 - - 10
2015
Trading of
telecommunications Provision of Investments in

products repair services financial assets Unallocated Consolidated
SHERE RUEBERE SREAERE AR e
HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT

Capital expenditure EARY = 1,369 = 47 1416

Depreciation heE 18 390 - 755 1,163

Loss on written off of property, #Hi#E%% HERHZE

plant and equipment LB - - - 10 10

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEFR (&)

(d) Geographical segments (d) HEDI
During the year ended 30 September 2016, 100% REBEZE_ZT—-R"FALA=TH
(2015:100%) of the Group's revenue and more IEEE AXEEI100% (==
than 85% (2015: more than 94%) of the Group's —HE:100% ) B Ut 28 2 AN &=

B BiE85% (=T — 1T : Bk
94% ) VAR E BN

- Bt A B 25 42 4
E“%%%o

total assets were derived from and located in Hong
Kong. Therefore, no geographical segment for the
respective years is presented.

(e) Information about major customers (e) EBAEXEEFEFZEH

During the year, the revenue from the Group’s RERN REXEEZFATFZ
largest customer arising from provision of repair & (ﬁ@hf/\,ﬁﬂxﬁﬁk)fﬁ$
services amounted to 64% (2015: 63%) of the EEBANRTZZ64% (ZF—H
Group's total revenue. No other single customers F:63%) BHE_T—RFR

contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue

—hAFNA=THILMEF

for both of the years ended 30 September 2016 and

B EEME-FPERAS

2015. BUtes 2 10% 80 A _E o

REVENUE 7. W
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
—E—XREF —FT—HF
B F T B FIT
Sales of goods HE & m 8,663 5,788
Provision of repair services R4 15)%%% 94,711 80,927

Unrealised gain/(loss) from financial FEiBEm A A FEEYEZE/@ME
assets at FVTPL, net ERESEW(EB)F58E 27 (20)
103,401 86,695

Sz
OTHER REVENUE Rl

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Dividend income f& B A 5 3
Interest income ) B U A 16 31
Sundry income HIFUWA 563 47
584 81
BRIEE (ZEKR) BRAE —T—REEHR
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BBRA
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$000
—E-RE —E R4
BT T BEFIT
Interest expenses on bank ARAFREBEHEEZ
borrowings wholly repayable RITEENERAX
within five years 129 42
10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. RV AT B
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging/ BREMBIEE NG, (GFTA) THIE
(crediting): B :
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-XRE —T—hF
BET T B F T
Auditors’ remuneration: ZERT N € -
Auditors of the Company ZAN/NETE % S 1,300 1,400
Other auditors H A% SR 307 105
Cost of trading inventories sold EEBHTFEXAR 4,941 2,675
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) & B & # X 1 (Hf:+28) 33,078 26,885
Retirement benefit costs (Note 28) EIREF X H (Hfz#28) 1,245 1,095
Depreciation e 1,396 1,163
Bad debts written off* R 5 AR 8 63 25
Loss on written off of property, WEEE - BB KR E 2 BB
plant and equipment* 10 10
Allowance for inventories GFEEE 58 294
Reversal of allowance for inventories [0l 17 & # {5 (72) (160)
Written off of inventories FE#ME 564 67
Operating lease rental in respect of BEHEEMEZ KEHE
rental premises 4,516 3,630
Exchange losses, net* ME X B 1R R - 6,023
* ltems included in other operating expenses. & FTAEMEE ST B 2IHE -
11. TAXATION 1. BLE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$000
—E—XEF —FT—AF
BT T BT T
Current tax: BRERE IR :
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EENEH
Current year RFE - (20)

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

TAXATION (continued)

Note:

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation arising
in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

The tax (credit)/charge for the years are reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

11. BiE (&)
Wit -

BB R BT AF Rl aE 2 R T m
#%16.5% (ZF—FAF :16.5% ) 2 K&
H o A H At B ME [ A A 2 T I8 TH IR AE RS
AERBRITZ M EGE -

AEEHE(EKR) FAXEGEBRER
Ko ot 2 T MR a8 R 2 B A5 A S 18 4 R 40

and other comprehensive income as follows: ™
2016 2015
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
BEFT % BT %
Loss before taxation BREiAIEE (25,299) (23,365)
Tax at statutory tax rate REEHMEFE LT
18 (4,174) (16.5) (3,855) (16.5)
Tax effect of expenses that are & & JERFHEFIA
not deductible in determining A3t 2 F %
taxable profit - 439 1.8 1,580 6.7
Tax effect of income that is not 7% & & 22 4 i 1l 7~
taxable in determining taxable EERIMA 2 B
profit T2 3) (0.1) (380) (1.6)
Unrecognised tax losses AERAHBER 3,623 143 2,619 11.2
Unrecognised deductible RERAMT < T
temporary differences =2 115 0.5 16 0.1
Tax (credit)/charge and effective AFEEFE (FR),/
tax rate for the year Hx REBRH X - = (20) 0.1

At 30 September 2016, the Group has cumulative
tax losses of approximately HK$251,962,000 (2015:
HK$237,949,000) available for offsetting against
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of the estimated tax losses
of HK$251,962,000 (2015: HK$237,949,000) due to

uncertainty of future profit streams.

RZE—ANENLNA=1+H ~&EH
#) ##251,962,000c (= —H
4 5 15237,949,0007T ) 2 5t 5 18 &
B HEE R ERTER - AR KR
BETEET B & 2 0m A - d I | ph B 1
251,962,000c (ZE—HF: B
237,949,0007T ) 2 ZFTHHIAE EER
RIEERIBEE

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

12.

13.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 30 September 2016 (2015:
HK$ Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$25,299,000 (2015: loss of
HK$23,345,000) and on 5,165,973,933 (2015:
5,165,973,933) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 30
September 2016 and 2015 was the same as basic loss per
share as there were no potential outstanding shares for
the years.

Annual Report 2016

12.

13.

Eﬁl%\
EFZeTEBRBEBE_T—AF
NA=Z+THRLEFEZEARE (ZF
—hF:EETT)

BREE
EREAEBEBEDREBEAQIRES A
JE 1 /5 18 49 75 #625,299,0007T (=&
— R F: EIE B #23,345,0000T) &
FANE31T25,165,973,933 (==
— R4 :5,165,973,9330% ) T @M 5+
AR EFEALEBE N RBETR
B MEHE—_ZE—RER T —HF
NA=+THLIFESRBEEFENS
BREREEHRER-
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ BERRKE

Leasehold Furniture Computers Motor
improvements  and fixtures and equipment vehicle Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BENEXE  KAREE BEERE RE At
BRI BRETR BRI BRI BRI
Cost: A
At 1 October 2014 it
tA-H 2,688 1,015 5,009 - 8,712
Additions NE 888 101 427 = 1,416
Written off i35 (704) - - - (704)
At 30 September 2015 and RZZ-h&
1 October 2015 NAZTBEER
—T-1%
+A-AH 2,872 1,116 5,436 = 9,424
Additions NE 282 89 715 745 1,831
Written off HisH (163) (180) - - (343)
At 30 September 2016 R=B-~%
NB=TH 2,991 1,025 6,151 745 10,912
Accumulated depreciation R HERAE
and impairment losses: B!
At 1 October 2014 RZE—MF
+A-H 1,311 623 4,103 = 6,037
Charge for the year KEEHE 423 181 559 - 1,163
Eliminated on disposal BB B (694) - - - (694)
At 30 September 2015 and R-Z-1F
1 October 2015 NAZHER
—Z-nf
tA-H 1,040 804 4,662 - 6,506
Charge for the year rEERE 705 154 487 50 139%
Eliminated on written off s 5 (163) (170) - - (333)
At 30 September 2016 R=B-X%
NA=TH 1,582 788 5,149 50 7,569
Carrying amounts: REE:
At 30 September 2016 R=B-~%
NB=TH 1,409 237 1,002 695 3,343
At 30 September 2015 RZE-1&
NA=+H 1,832 312 774 = 2,918
BNER (ZR) BRAT =T FFH
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15. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30

September 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S M5 S M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— A XFNA=ZTHILFE

15. B QA RIER
R-ZE—RNEER-_E—HFHNA=F
B ARBTEMBARZHBEM0
—|T:

Place of Particulars of fully Percentage of equity
Name of subsidiaries incorporation/ operation  paid up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
2016 2015
% %
Indirectly held
WEATAR AR/ HRRAZER ARARERE IEXE
Seny [il4
Z8-7F ZZ-1f
% %
BRLE
Ample Vision Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 Ordinary 100 100 General trading
Hong Kong
FRERARAA ABREE/EE LRRET —%&%
Linktech Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of repair Services
Bk LRRER LT RUELERE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16. I ESRMEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—RE —E—hHE
BT T BT
At the beginning and the end of ~ RE R ER
the year 5,950 5,950
AFS financial assets at 30 RNAA=Z+THZAHEHESRE
September, comprise of EeR
Unlisted debt securities: FLEmEKES:
Club debentures (note) SHTES (MaE) 5,950 5,950
Note: Bt at -

The club debentures are stated at cost less impairment loss
at the end of each reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
Directors consider that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably. During the years ended 30 September 2016 and 2015,
the Group identified no impairment loss related to the club
debentures.

HRAERFEEMAFT ZHEILEK
NHEBEERREMERZ A FEETER
SR E WEMEFN SRS HRAKAK

MRREBRIIR -BE—

T-RFEEZ

E-AFNA=ZTHIEFE AEEWE
BRESMESBMIRERR-

INVENTORIES 17. 78
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—XRE —E—hF
BT T BT T
Finished goods X & 1,531 2,504
Less: Allowance for slow-moving & : 517 & B
inventories (99) (232)
1,432 2 212
The reversal of write-down of inventories arose due HRFEARREHESHEEE 5T8
to the increase in the estimated net realisable value mZIEEt A SR EER I EMEE
of certain goods as a result of sales of slow-moving il £H # O] o
inventories recognised during the year.
BAER (ZER) GRAE —Z—REERH
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

At the end of the reporting periods, the aging analysis of

18. EIRE B IR

RBEYR BRE SRR Z RS

the trade receivables is as follows: T :
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$000
—E—AE —E—FRF
BT T JE M I
Current B HR 460 531
One to three months overdue wME—Z ={E A 325 383

More than three months, but less #EE={EA A LB+ @A LA

than twelve months overdue 59 50
Over twelve months overdue penp= iy i (= I 139,563 139,586
140,407 140,550
Less: Impairment loss recognised  J& : B #ERIBEE B (139,270) (139,241)
1,137 1,309

Notes:

izt -

(@) The credit terms granted to the Group’s customers vary (a)
and are generally the results of negotiations between the

Group and individual customers.

(b) Included in the trade receivable balances are debtors (b)
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$677,000 (2015: HK$778,000) which are overdue
at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

Annual Report 2016
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

The aging analysis of the trade receivables which are

18. EIRE B R (&)
s : (48)

EBRAERREZERE SRR Z

overdue but not impaired is as follows: RECDITIAT :
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
—B-AF —T-0%F
BT T BT
One to three months overdue wmE—ZF = A 325 383
More than three months, but less  BEA={EA LA EB+=FEANUR
than twelve months overdue 59 50
Over twelve months overdue A& A A E 293 345
677 778
The movement of the allowance for impairment loss of (0 REWEIERZREEBEZEES
trade receivables is as follows: BT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-XEF —ET-—A0F
BT T BT T
At the beginning of the year RER 139,241 139,287
Exchange difference ME H =R 29 (46)
At the end of the year RF 4K 139,270 139,241
The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables which (d) AEBEEEBREZERE SRR
are individually impaired is as follows: 2RO
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-REF —E—ARF
BT T BT T
Over twelve months overdue BHA+ — (@ A Ak 139,270 139,241
EREE (2K GRAT —Z—AFFR
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19.

20.

21.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. ATRE ZHERHEMERRK
RECEIVABLES 15

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-REF —E—hHHF

BT T BT T

Prepayments TA R IE 720 698

Deposits Ze 5,047 4,921

Other receivables H b e W 3k I8 2,648 2,352

8,415 7,971

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. EBERUATFEEIEREZ
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS ETHMEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XFE ZZT—RF
BUEF T T T
Held-for-trading: BIEER:
— Listed equity securities in Hong — R & B Z ETRAE 5
Kong 204 177

All financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair values. Fair
values of the listed investments are determined with
reference to the quoted market bid prices available on
the Stock Exchange.

PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS

The balances, which were carried at the prevailing market
interest rate at 0.31% p.a. represent deposits pledged to
a bank to secure short-term bank borrowings (Note 25)
granted to the Group, and therefore classified as current
assets. The pledged deposits will be released upon expiry
or termination or upon the settlement of relevant bank
borrowings. At 30 September 2016, all the pledged time
deposits were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

Annual Report 2016
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22. RERBITEER
2016 2015
HK$°’000 HK$'000
—E—RE —E—hHE
BT T BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITFER MRS 52,923 14,298
Notes: HfaE -
(@) Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on (@) TEHREBRTZERESIEESRHRIT
daily bank deposit rates. AR 2 7% 8 B R AR A 2. -
(b) The Group’s bank balances are denominated in the (b) ANEBRITEBATIEEE:
following currencies:
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$°000
—E—XEF —ZT—A0F
BT T BEFT
Hong Kong Dollars ok 52,141 13,357
United States Dollars ETT 598 684
New Taiwan Dollars e 111 182
Others EAb 73 75
52,923 14,298
TRADE PAYABLES 23. EHE S EXR
At the end of the reporting periods, the aging analysis of REBEEAG . ENZE SED TV ERD
the trade payables is as follows: B UENE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—AE —E—FRF
BT T BT T
Current and within one month BIER R — &l H A 2,611 4,321
One to three months overdue w0 Hl— 2= = (& H = 8
Over three months overdue BEA=E A & 11 10

2,622 4,339

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH
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24,

25.

26.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. EtERA R HMESFIE

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$°000

—E-RE —E R4

BETF T B F T

Accrued charges Bt & A 1,840 719
Other payables H fth & < 5038 21,557 7,292
23,397 8,011

Note:

At 30 September 2016, other payables comprised an
amount due to a former director, Mr. Sy Ethan, Timothy, of
approximately HK$12,022,000 (2015: HK$ Nil). The amount is
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

ffat :

R-ZBE—XRENLA=1+H HitEMNZKE
BIREMNAMEE R R ST E IR S
12,022,0007C (=B —H4F : BT ) o
ZeHALE EEHMRAREREME
8 o

BANK BORROWINGS 25. RITRE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—RE —E—hF
BT T BT T
Carrying amounts of bank EEERTEEZREE:
borrowings repayable:
— Within one year -—FNA 4,500 4,500
Note: TR

Bank borrowings are secured by the pledged time deposits,
carried interested rates at HIBOR plus 2.9% per annum and
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

LOAN FROM THE IMMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

At 30 September 2016, the loan from the immediate
holding company of HK$50,000,000 (2015: HK$ Nil)
represents the loan from the immediate holding company
to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable within one
year.

Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. R
Number
of shares HK$°000
&< g=| B FIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SR EEB¥0.01 T2 @K
Issued and fully paid ERITRAR
At 1 October 2014, R-ZZE—NE+A—B-
30 September 2015 and —ET-AFNA=1THEK
30 September 2016 —E—RENLA=TH 5,165,973,933 51,659
28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 28. EERAZH

(a) Staff cost () EIRAX
The total staff cost of the Group during the year RNERN REBZET (BiF=E
(including directors and senior management ENEREREAS ZEME) KA

emoluments) is as follows: MEEEINT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—-XR¥ —E—hF
BT T B F T
Salaries and allowances E = 32,812 26,603
Discretionary bonuses BIFIEAL - 54
Staff welfare & B & A 266 228
Contributions to retirement fund ER & = 1,245 1,095

34,323 27,980

BRER (2K) BRAT —B-AEER 101
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)
(b) Directors and senior management

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

emoluments

The emoluments of the Directors are as follows:

28. EERAZH (&)
(b) EEREREEASZHE

EEMMET

Year ended 30 September 2016
BE-Z-A¥NA=tHLEFE

Salaries Contributions
and to retirement
Name of Directors EEHS Fees  allowances fund Total
HKS000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
e EHeREE  BRASHER &t
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive Directors HTEZE
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian (note a) BIRFEL (Hita) - 732 10 742
Mr. SO Haw, Herman (note b) BEELE (With) - 813 12 825
Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy (note ¢) ERELE (Mitc) - - - -
Mr. SUNG Yee Keung, Ricky (note d) ~ REB%4 (Hatd) - 161 8 169
Non-executive Directors FHNTEE
Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian (note a) ERALE (Hita) - 81 2 83
Mr. DU Jun (note e) HELE (Kite) = - - -
Mr. LI Xiang Yu (note f) FRSEE (i) - - - -
Mr. CUI Ming Hong (note f) ERREE (W) - - - -
Mr. YANG Li Ming (note ) BB LA (Haf) - - - -
Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren (note g) BEREE (Mrig) 134 - = 134
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTEE
Mr. WONG Chun Man (note h) THRXEE (Hith) 201 - - 201
Mr. TSE Yung Hoi (note h) ABBEE (Hath) 201 - - 201
Mr. NG Man Kung (note h) RXBEE (HiEh) 201 - = 201
Mr. Andrew David ROSS (note i) Andrew David ROSS% 4
(Histi) 187 - - 187
Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT (note ) Geoffrey William FAWCETTE &
(Hsti) 134 - - 134
Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON (note |) Charles Robert LAWSON %t &
(Hizti) 134 - - 134
1,192 1,787 32 3,011

Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 30 September 2016 &#HZ_—Z

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Directors and senior management
emoluments (continued)

—RNFNA=TRHIFE

28. EERAZH (&)
(b) EEREREEASZHS

(%)

Year ended 30 September 2015

BE_T-hENA=THIEE
Contributions
Salaries and  to retirement
Name of Directors R Fees allowances fund Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
we FelEl  BReEXR A3t
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFTT
Executive Directors HTEZ
Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy BRELE - - - -
Mr. SUNG Yee Keung, Ricky REBEE - 360 18 378
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren BERLE 300 - - 300
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUHHTEE
Mr. Andrew David ROSS Andrew David ROSS7t 4 420 = - 40
Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT Geoffrey William FAWCETTS & 300 = = 300
Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON Charles Robert LAWSON%: & 300 = - 300
1,320 360 18 1,698
Notes: Bk

Mr. HUANG Zhen Qian was appointed as Non-
executive Director with effect from 3 February 2016.
He was re-designated as Executive Director with
effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. SO Haw, Herman was appointed as Executive
Director with effect from 3 February 2016.

Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy resigned as Executive Director
and Chairman and Chief Executive Officer with
effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. SUNG Yee Keung, Ricky resigned as Executive
Director with effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. DU Jun was appointed as Non-executive Director
and as Chairman with effect from 11 March 2016.

ERIER (BR) BRAF

HIRAEEEZ A BIENTE
£ B "FH=HE
ER-HERAETARITES
BT A"F=ZA+—HigL
B e

RERBITES

FRom
—_=E— /\i_ﬂfﬂﬁ_i

Q es
o

“”E%iﬁ‘ﬂ%ﬁﬁé%&i
FEARITHRER B=F—
F=A+—REREX-

AERBENTEST B _F
SN el L e

MELEEZTAENTE
EREE BT —XRE=H
+—BHEER-

—NEEFER
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Directors and senior management
emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(f)

(i)

Mr. LI Xiang Yu, Mr. CUlI Ming Hong and Mr. YANG
Li Ming were appointed as Non-executive Directors
with effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren resigned as Non-executive
Director with effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. WONG Chun Man, Mr. TSE Yung Hoi and Mr.
NG Man Kung were appointed as Independent Non-
executive Directors with effect from 11 March 2016.

Mr. Andrew David ROSS, Mr. Geoffrey William
FAWCETT and Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON
resigned as Independent Non-executive Directors
with effect from 11 March 2016.

Certain Directors have waived emoluments for both
of the years ended 30 September 2016 and 2015
and up to the dates of reports:

28. EEERNZH (&)

(b) EEREREBEAEZHE
(%)
izt (&)

) ZFRBEE  ERRTERS
MR EEZTRIENTE
£ 8- "F=A+—H
RB AR o

(90 =EMELBEIIFNTES:
—T-RF=ZAT—HEE

SEE T g

o

(hy FEXGEE -WBEELERR
S A E R T AIB N T
B2 g2 XF=-A+—
HiBER -

()  Andrew David ROSS%E 4 -
Geoffrey William FAWCETTSE4E
¥ Charles Robert LAWSON4E 4=
BABYIERTES B2
—NF=ZA+—HRBEK-

BE-T-~FR-F-AFAA
=tRLMESEREEARE R
B 5 TEFSHENS

Year ended 30 September 2016
BE-Z2-R"FNA=THLFE

Contributions
Salaries and to retirement

Name of Directors EENE Fees allowances fund

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
e FERERE EBAESMHER

BT T BT T BEF T

Executive Director HITEE

Mr. SY Ethan, Timothy Mo BE 5t & - 8,032 402

Non-executive Director FHITEE

Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren SEmELE 54 = -

Independent non-executive

Directors BUHHTEE

Mr. Andrew David ROSS Andrew David ROSS%: 4 80 = =

Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT  Geoffrey William FAWCETTSt & 54 - -

Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON Charles Robert LAWSONZE A4 54 = =

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEHE M

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE—ZE— X NFNA=ZTHILFE

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Directors and senior management
emoluments (continued)

28. EERAZH (&)
(b) EEREREEASZHS

(%&)

Year ended 30 September 2015
BE_Z-IFNA=TBILFE

Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
Name of Directors EENA Fees allowances fund
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FeRkE RIKE BT
BEFT BEFT BEFT
Executive Director HITEE
M. SY Ethan, Timothy B RELE - 18,000 900
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. KO Wai Lun, Warren RERLE 120 - -
Independent non-executive
Directors BUNHITESE
Mr. Andrew David ROSS Andrew David ROSS 4 180 = =
Mr. Geoffrey William FAWCETT  Geoffrey William FAWCETT% & 120 - -
Mr. Charles Robert LAWSON Charles Robert LAWSONZ & 120 - -

No amounts have been paid by the Group to the
Directors as inducement to join the Group, as
compensation for loss of office or as commitment
fees to existing Directors for entering into new
service contracts with the Group for the year ended
30 September 2016 (2015: HK$ Nil).

Apart from the aforesaid, no other emoluments
have been paid to the Directors for the year ended
30 September 2016 (2015: HK$ Nil).

BE_T-RFAA=TBHILF
B AEBHERE R NEM
FRIRERMBEAREE 2 B 3K
BB ZFAE I TEAR
SERINHMRGANIREES
ZEEE(ZT—hF BT
JT) e

B EN BEZT—RFN
A=tHLEFEREREE (S
Hite (ZT—0F - BEET
JT) e

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)
(c) Five highest paid individuals

()

The five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group for the year included 2 (2015: no)
Directors whose emoluments are set out in Note
28(b). The aggregate of the emoluments payable
in respect of the three (2015: five) highest paid
individuals of which do not include any senior
management during the year are as follows:

28. EEERNZH (&)

TERSHFMAL
AEEBREGESHMALBER
Z2EF(ZT—1F 8) EF
N EE IS E N E28(b) - R F
NENTZ=%(ZF—RF:
ER)GEeFHEMAL (EFTE
BREMSRERAR) ZHME
BLAK :

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E—AE —E—FRF

BT T BT

Salaries and allowances N 1,536 2,077
Contributions to retirement fund Bk & K 77 102
1,613 2,179

Number of individual

AE
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hHHF
Emolument bands: 28 Bl :
HK$ Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 B T 2 % 1,000,0007T 3 5

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 6 March 2015 pursuant to which
employees and directors of the Group and other eligible
persons who have made contribution to the Group
were given opportunity to obtain equity holdings in the

Company.

A summary of the Scheme is set out as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Scheme

29. BB RERE

(a)

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their

contribution to the Group.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Participants of the Scheme

Eligible participants include full time employees
and directors of the Company or its subsidiaries;
advisers, consultants, suppliers and agents to the
Company or its subsidiaries and such other persons
who, at the sole determination of the board of
directors, have contributed to the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme and percentage of issued
share capital at the date of this annual
report

No share option had been granted under the
Scheme and no share is available for issue under the
Scheme at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the Scheme

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless
the same is approved by shareholders in general
meeting.

The period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

At any time during a period to be notified by the
board of directors, which period not to exceed 10
years commencing on the date on which the option
is accepted and expiring on a day not later than the
last day of the 10-year period.

The minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

None, unless otherwise determined by the board
of directors and specified in the offer letter of an
option.

29. BIRAERTE (&)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

ERIER (BR) BRAF

AtElz8RE
BERSEEREANRFLEMN
BRRIZEBEEBNES AR
BIRE W E AR 2B - 7R
B HERAIRKEBEARESES
BRECHAREELERM CH
b AL e

BRI T HBIT ZROBE
REXAFHRAPERTREAZ
B

RS 3 B HIS BAR IR AT R
FE R - TR R (0 IR AR AT 8 TR
7o

REFEZTSRECESERE

RAEMI2EABMETERT &
2mEZBRE(BEDITR
B R M ARTT 2 BB ) B
BERTRAETZRNBENE
BAEETRM % ERRE
BRRAXE LHt/EBRIECRRERIN o

REBEREARBRO 2HR

SRR 2 BE A EA R
B B8 B T 5 R iR B AR RS AR A
HEAREET 10 - W BN Z105F
M &E—BEm-

BRERUTENREFEZR
2 AR

B BRIFEZTERTEENANE
BEBROHIFANRITAIA -

ZE-REER
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(9)

(h)

The amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option and the period
within which payments or calls must or may
be made or loans for such purposes must be
repaid

HK$1.00 is to be paid as consideration for the grant
of option within 30 days from the date of offer.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the board
of directors but shall not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date on 6
March 2015.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme
since its adoption.

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2016

29. BIRAESTE (&)

(9)

(h)

TR B 5 % A0 B R B B A K
TR RS AT RE A R R ME A
ARLEENEEER ZHIR

RHERES B 25308 AE
B 00T ERRE -

BETEEEE
FEEALMEERER 1A
ERTHIBBE

(i) WRONRBEHE BT A
BRBREEXRMI 2T
=

(i) BRONEZRLE AAISE

SEHEBXEERE
RS2 FHRTE : R

(iiiy —RAXfD 2 E(E -

=t BN ERF 1
AER-ZE-RF=ARNERS
= HEFHI0OFRAAER-
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. EXAEBEEALTRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRREGETBRESBREEIN K
statements, the Group had the following material related SEERFRNEUTEFERBEALR
party transactions during the year: 5
Balances ek
Details of the balances with related parties at the end of RImEHREFHEA T 2 ERFE
the reporting period are set out in Note 26. P EE26 ©
Key management personnel compensation FTEEHEAEMS
Compensation for key management personnel, including LM sE28(b)FT 5 - T EEIE A B B
amount paid to the Directors, as disclosed in Note 28(b), T (BEXNTESFZRE)WT:
is as follows:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —T-HF

BE T BT T

Salaries and allowances e MoEBh 2,979 1,680
Contributions to retirement fund ~ E{RE K 32 18
3,011 1,698
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. KEHERR
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating ?K%Eﬁ%@%% %ﬁ%ﬁ_ﬁ BEETY
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated % MR HEFHEERERET
for terms ranging from one to five years. R—FERFFF-
At the end of reporting periods, the Group had total mi&%%ﬂ{’ﬁfﬁ*ETJ%TW%FE?@J
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable B2 RIS B B T A AR SR 2 A+
operating leases falling due as follows: IEBERBZHBNAT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
—¥—AF (B AF

EBET T EETT

Within one year —FR 3,429 2,564

In the second to fifth years, inclusive EBE-FZFHF (HEEMFTRIEERN) 1,610 2A35
5,039 4,919

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. AREE

The Group did not have any significant contingent RBERR AEBE A EERERK

liabilities at the end of the reporting periods. RAEE-

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33. IERREK
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—XEF —E—RF

BT BT T

Non-current assets IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries YEPNEIE: F 10,749 22,500
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 5,300 5,300
16,049 27,800
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NG S - 5,171
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE - RE A
receivables 1 & U K08 128 266
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTT 4 64 46 244
174 5,681
Current liabilities mEEE
Accrued charges and other payables FE&T & B & E fib fE {5/ IB 5,593 5,155
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A} Fft /B A B FK 3B 11,735 5,231
17,328 10,386
Net current liabilities REA SR (17,154) (4,705)
Total assets less current liabilities #2EERAREBEE (1,105) 23,095
Net (liabilities)/assets (BB EERE (1,105) 23,095
Equity s
Capital and reserves attributable ZAATHEEABLERKHE
to owners of the Company
Share capital A AR 51,659 51,659
Reserves (note) s (Hat) (52,764) (28,564)
Total equity R (1,105) 23,095
The statement of financial position of the Company AATHERRERRAATEESRN

was approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors of the Company on 19 December 2016 and are
signed on its behalf by:

HUANG Zhen Qian
EHiR#
Executive Director

HITEF

1 1 O Global Tech (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016
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Executive Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)
Note:

The reserves of the Company as at 30 September 2016 and 30
September 2015 are as follows:

33

. B RARR R ()

izt -

RZZE—RFNA=TER=ZZ—AFN
A=1TBARRRZFEHBWOT :

Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EARER
IR 13 % E f# E- Fi| A&t
BT T BT BT T BT T
At 1 October 2014 R-ZT—mE
+A—H 648,897 160 (666,360) (17,303)
Loss for the year RNEEFEEBE - - (11,261) (11,261)
At 30 September 2015 and R-Z—HF
1 October 2015 NA=+8B kK
—T-HF
+A—H 648,897 160 (677,621) (28,564)
Loss for the year REEEE = = (24,200) (24,200)
At 30 September 2016 R=ZF—REF
hWA=1+H 648,897 160 (701,821) (52,764)

At 30 September 2016, the Company has no
distributable reserve (2015: HK$ Nil), represented by
share premium less accumulated losses of the Company.
Under the Companies Law (2014 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium of the Company is distributable to
the members, subject to a solvency test.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19
December 2016.

34.

R-ZE—RFALA=1H XRFL
BADRFE(ZZE—RF BBZ
7T)  EEROEERA R R Z REHE
B-REFSHESATNE(ZZT @O
FEF)  ARARMEEBAKER
BE DRI IR 20K T AR

RETRESMBRE

EFEERNF A FRTHTAHE
B R R T A7 B P TS HR S

BNER (BR) ARAE —T-—R"EFFH
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AEMBRE

For the year ended 30 September
BEENA=THLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
“E-NE —T-—0F —T-NF —T-—=F —T——F
BT E¥Tr E¥Fr E¥FrT EET
Results HEE
Revenue Wz 103,401 86,695 89,785 110,548 100,583
Loss before taxation BRIt A E1E (25,299)  (23,365)  (15,972)  (40,105)  (20,626)
Taxation I8 - 20 (20) 52,993 -
(Loss)/profit attributable to RARHEB AR
owners of the Company (&), &7 (25,299) (23,345  (15,992) 12,888  (20,626)
Dividends f% 2 - - - _ _
At 30 September
RAA=1H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
ZE-RE ZE-hF ZENF ZE-=F ZE—-F
BT EEFTrT EEFrT E¥FT EETT
Assets and liabilities EERER
Property, plant and equipment 1% BE & &K fE 3,343 2,918 2,675 3,904 4,510
Available-for-sale financial assets At E £ @ EE 5,950 5,950 5,950 5,950 5,950
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(aE) BE
R (11,364) 14,227 32,006 45,008 31,318
(2,071) 23,095 40,631 54,862 41,778
Equity attributable to owners of AR FEA A EH#E
the Company (2,071) 23,095 40,631 54,862 41,778

Global Tech (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016
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